Solead Counity

HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

AGENDA
MARCH 28, 2024




Agenda

SOLEDAD COMMUNITY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
March 28, 2024 @) 4:00 p.m.

Board members and members of the public may attend this meeting in person at the
District Office located at 612 Main Street, Soledad, Ca 93960 in the Creekside Room

. Call to Order

. Roll Call

Graig Stephens
Maggie Campa
Rosemary Guidotti
Anne Trebino
Michael Schell

. Pledge of Allegiance

. Reading of the District’s Mission Statement — To be read by a District Board Member
“To anticipate and provide services to meet the health care needs of the people we serve.”

. President’s Welcome
Introductions and Welcome — Graig Stephens

. Approval of Minutes Action
1. Special Meeting of February 28, 2024.

BOARD ACTION:

. Approval of Minutes Action
1. Regular Meeting of February 29, 2024.

BOARD ACTION:

. Public Comment

Members of the public are welcome to participate in the meetings of the Board. Comments of the public will
be accepted during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. No action or comments will be taken by the
Board on matters not on the agenda. Public comments on agenda items should be made at the time each item is
considered. When the Board President recognizes a member of the public for oral comment, such comment
shall be three (3) minutes or less, at the discretion of the Board President. We would like a calm presentation
so that the importance of what you are presenting is not overshadowed by the manner of the presentation.

Outside District Audit Presentation — JWT & Associates, LLP — Nathan Doty, CPA, Partner, Presenter.

1. Audited Financial Statements for the Soledad Community Health Care District.
(Board will consider the approval of the Audited Financial Statements FYE June 30, 2023)

BOARD ACTION:




10. Communications Coordinator — Adriana Gonzalez

11. Treasurer’s Report —
A. Review of Operating Entities and the District, Mr. Brent Green, CPA
Financial Statements (Board will consider the approval of the Treasurer’s Report)

BOARD ACTION:

12. Monthly Budget Review —
(Board will consider the approval of the monthly budget for the 2023-2024 fiscal year)

BOARD ACTION:

13. Resolution 2024-02 Soledad Community Health Care District Investment Policy -

BOARD ACTION:

14. Review of Bylaws of Soledad Community Health Care District —

BOARD ACTION:

15. Soledad Community Health Care District Public Records Request Policy —

BOARD ACTION:

16. Soledad Community Health Care District Brown Act Policy —

BOARD ACTION:

17. Soledad Community Health Care District Transparency Laws and Social Media Policy —

BOARD ACTION:

18. Establish Finance Committee —

BOARD ACTION:

19. Ballot for Election of LAFCO Commissioner — Special District Regular Member

BOARD ACTION:

20. District’s CEO Report — Ida Lopez Chan

LAFCO MSR Study
Accounts Payable Process
Eden Valley Update
Clinic Update

H.R. 7525

Ui

21. Adjournment to the next meeting
Regular District Board Meeting — Thursday, April 25, 2024 at 4:00 P.M.



Note: Requests for a disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the District Recording Secretary during regular business hours at
831-678-2462. Notification received 47 hours before the meeting will enable the district to make reasonable
accommodations. Open session meeting materials provided to the Board of Directors after the agenda packets are
distributed are available at the office of the Recording Secretary located at 612 Main Street, Soledad, California.



Soledad Community Health Care District
Special Meeting of the Board of Directors
February 28, 2024 @ 9:00 a.m.

MINUTES
1. Call to order at 9:00 a.m. by President, Graig Stephens
2. Board of Directors Roll Call.
Directors Present: President, Graig Stephens
Vice President, Maggie Campa
Secretary, Rosemary Guidotti
Treasurer, Anne Trebino
Board Member, Michael Schell
Directors Absent: None
Staff Present: CEO, Ida Lopez Chan

District Recording Secretary, Sophie Pifia

We have a Quorum

3.

4.

Pledge of Allegiance: Graig Stephens

Mission Statement:  Rosemary Guidotti

President’s Welcome: Graig Stephens

Public Comment: None

2024 Strategic Plan - Michelle Slade Chief Strategist of C4 Consulting

Meeting Adjourned at 2:30p.m. — The board will reconvene on Thursday February 29, 2024 for a Regular
District Board Meeting at 4:00p.m.

Prepared By:

Sophie Pifla, District Board Secretary

Approved By:

Graig Stephens, Board President



Soledad Community Health Care District
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

February 29, 2024 @ 4:00 p.m.

MINUTES

1. Call to order at 4:02 p.m. by President, Graig Stephens

2. Board of Directors Roll Call.

Directors Present:

Directors Absent:

Staff Present:

District CPA:
We have a Quorum
3. Pledge of Allegiance:

4. Mission Statement:

5. President’s Welcome:

6. Approval of Minutes:

7. Public Comment:

President, Graig Stephens

Vice President, Maggie Campa
Secretary, Rosemary Guidotti
Treasurer, Anne Trebino
Board Member, Michael Schell

None

CEQO, Ida Lopez Chan
District Recording Secretary, Sophie Pifia

Brent Green

Graig Stephens

Rosemary Guidotti

Graig Stephens

Motion: The board approved the minutes as mailed from the regular board meeting
on January 25, 2024.

M/S: Campa/Trebino

Ayes: Stephens, Campa, Guidotti, Trebino, Schell

Nays: -

Abstain: -

Absent: -

Motion: Passed

A member of the public, who did not identify himself, handed recall
paperwork to Directors Stephens and Trebino.

Wes White commented on transparency and would like for our meetings to be zoom
available.



Soledad Community Health Care District
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
February 29, 2024 @ 4:00 p.m.

8. Outside District Audit Presentation JWT & Associates, LLP Nathan Doty, CPA -

Motion: The board approved to table the acceptance of the District Audit Report
until the next board meeting so the board members had time to review.

M/S: Schell/Trebino

Ayes: Stephens, Campa, Guidotti, Trebino, Schell

Nays: -

Abstain: -

Absent: -

Motion: Passed

9. Treasurer’s Report —

Motion: The board approved the Financial Statements for review for Operating
Entities and the District.

M/S: Trebino/Guidotti

Ayes: Stephens, Campa, Guidotti, Trebino

Nays: - Schell

Abstain: -

Absent: -

Motion: Passed

10. Monthly Budget Review —

Motion: The board approved the monthly budget for the 2023-2024 fiscal year.
M/S: Trebino/Campa

Ayes: Stephens, Campa, Guidotti, Trebino, Schell

Nays: -

Abstain: -

Absent: -

Motion: Passed

11. Resolution 2024-01 Authorizing SCHCD to incur indebtedness and to execute documents in
connection with a term loan from 1% Capital Bank. —

Motion: The board approved Resolution 2024-01
M/S: Campa/Guidotti

Ayes: Stephens, Campa, Guidotti, Trebino, Schell
Nays: -

Abstain: -

Absent: -

Motion: Passed

12. Communications Coordinator — Adriana shared all the events that have been happening at the district. The
Tribune showcased two of our years of service staff members Olga Morales 25 years of service and Maria
Morga 30 years of service. The staff lead an event where many staff members wore purple to show support
to a local child with Moebius syndrome. On 2/7/24 our staff attended the Soledad Highschool career



Soledad Community Health Care District
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
February 29, 2024 @ 4:00 p.m.

fair and on 2/23/24 our staff also participated in a resource fair with the school district. The district
celebrated Valentine’s Day by treating the staff to a waffle bar in our very own Soda shop. King City High
School ASB Students dropped off Valentines cards for our residents. We are in collaboration with a
vendor who will be providing lavender towels for our residents. The towels promote relaxation and a
positive healthcare experience to our residents. Adriana is working on board member biographies.

District’s CEO Report — The staff attended their second leadership and development session. We recently
signed an agreement with the Soledad Police Department and the Soledad Unified School District. This
agreement will now allow us to have radios to communicate during emergencies. Ida continues working
on partnerships. Ida is in discussion for a potential partnership with Maria Elena from Mujeres en Accion.
There has been conversation about a grant that can help provide vaccines to the underserved. We are in
discussion with Agrigator to team up with them again with future projects. Hartnell students have been
doing their clinical rotation here at Eden Valley. Volunteers are now able to sign up on our website. This
year we received $3,640.00 from McGives, the funds will go towards the CPSP program at the clinic. SB
525 health care worker minimum wage is still under review with the governor. Susan reported the census
for Eden Valley. As of today, the in-house census is 48 with 1 bed hold. We had a visit from CDPH for a
self-report incident. Susan attended the resident council meeting and no complaints were reported. Eden
Valley is in the survey window and staff continue to prepare for our annual survey.

13. Meeting Adjourned at 6:00p.m. — The board will reconvene on March 28, 2024 for a Regular District
Board Meeting at 4:00p.m.

Prepared By:

Sophie Pifia, District Board Secretary

Approved By:

Graig Stephens, Board President



Soledad Community Health Care District

Balance Sheet

As of February 29, 2024
29-Feb-24 28-Feb-23 Variance
Assets
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,577,046 1,329,160 1,247,886
Assets Limited as to Use - Current 105 105 -
Patient Accounts Receivable - Net 2,208,879 1,762,760 446,119
Other Receivables 50,107 90,295 (40,188)
Inventories 113,615 113,144 471
Prepaid Expenses & Deposits 212,237 164,288 47,949
5,161,989 3,459,752 1,702,237
Fixed Assets:
Buildings & Improvements 10,772,534 10,713,058 59,476
Equipment 3,027,243 3,027,243 -
Construction in Progress - 148,315 (148,315)
13,799,777 13,888,616 (88,839)
Accum Depr (8,158,868) (7,650,000) (508,868)
5,640,909 6,238,616 (597,707)
Total Assets 10,802,898 9,698,368 1,104,530
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 427,813 250,229 177,584
Accrued Payroll & Benefits 540,640 540,665 (25)
Estimated Third Party Settlements 4,464,424 1,509,305 2,955,119
1st Capital Bank - Line of Credit - 250,000 (250,000)
Current Portion - Long-term Debt 147,351 135,832 11,519
5,580,228 2,686,031 2,894,197
Long-Term Debt 3,713,252 3,854,341 {(141,089)
Total Liabilities 9,293,480 6,540,372 2,753,108
Net Assets (Assets Minus Liabilities) 1,509,418 3,157,996 (1,648,578)
Summary of Net Assets
Beginning of Year - July 1st 1,039,477 3,754,035
Increase <Decrease> in Net Assets 469,941 (596,039)
End of Period 1,509,418 3,157,996
Number of Days of Cash on Hand 70.06 36.13




Soledad Community Health Care District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

For the Eight Months Ended: February 29, 2024
Operating Revenues: 29-Feb-24 28-Feb-23 Variance
Medical Services 15,117,359 13,512,223 1,605,136
Contractual Adjustments (3,290,581) (4,589,140) 1,298,559
Estimated PPS {750,000) - (750,000)
11,076,778 8,923,083 2,153,695
Other Operating Revenues 184,574 116,813 67,761
11,261,352 9,039,896 2,221,456
Operating Expenses:
Salaries & Wages 4,574,633 4,581,356 (6,723)
Professional Fees 2,829,640 2,112,409 717,231
Supplies 1,182,375 903,117 279,258
Employee Benefits 987,018 1,029,886 (42,868)
Utilities 274,437 264,800 9,637
Other Operating Expenses 251,012 193,226 57,786
Purchased Services 214,763 221,576 (6,813)
Insurance 206,580 182,886 23,694
Rents and Leases 33,066 28,038 5,028
10,553,524 9,517,294 1,036,230
Operating Income <Loss> Before Depreciation 707,828 (477,398) 1,185,226
Less Depreciation (334,855) (340,096) 5,241
Operating Income <Loss> After Depreciation 372,973 (817,494) 1,190,467
Non-Operating Revenues <Expenses>
District Property Tax Revenues 213,715 208,672 5,043
Grants & Contributions 120 147,750 (147,630)
Investment Income 1,834 447 1,387
Interest Expense (118,701) (135,414) 16,713
96,968 221,455 (124,487)
Increase <Decrease> in Net Assets 469,941 (596,039) 1,065,980
Summary of Income by Operation
Eden Valley Care Center 1,383,472 155,375 1,228,097
Clinic & Women's Health Center (345,223) (202,863) (142,360)
District (568,308) (548,551) (19,757)
469,941 (596,039) 1,065,980
Other Items:
Contractual Adjustments % 26.73% 33.96%
Salaries to Gross Revenues 30.26% 33.91%
Professional Fees to Gross Revenues 18.72% 15.63%




Soledad Community Health Care District

Account Summaries

Description 29-Feb-24 28-Feb-23 Variance

Cash & Cash Equivalents:

1st Capital Bank 1,572,918 974,855 598,063
Mechanics Bank 974,919 320,990 653,929
LAIF 16,613 16,066 547
US Bank 6,315 10,968 (4,653)
Petty Cash 6,281 6,281 -
Totals 2,577,046 1,329,160 1,247,886

Accounts Receivable

Eden Valley - Net 1,871,419 963,246 908,173
Clinic - Net 337,460 799,514 (462,054)
Totals ’ 2,208,879 1,762,760 446,119

Summary of Income by Month

July 163,884 (306,626)
August 242,008 (446,273)
September 206,954 (82,121)
October 351,927 (58,172)
November 101,229 (173,506)
December (3,848) 104,729
January 82,873 (147,174}
February 74,914 383,104
March
April
May
June
Totals 1,219,941 (726,039) 1,945,980
Grants Received - 130,000
Estimated PPS (750,000) - Favorable
469,941 (596,039) <Unfavorable>

Gross Revenues by Type

Medical Clinic 8,486,703 56.14%

Medi-Cal 3,505,949 23.19% 52.87%

Medicare 2,445,717 16.18% 36.88%

Other 635,792 4.21% 9.59%

Private 43,198 0.29% 0.65%
15,117,359 100.00% 100.00%




Soledad Community Health Care District

Account Summaries

Eden Valley Care Center by Dept 29-Feb-24 28-Febh-23 Variance
Revenues - Net
Medi-Cal 3,451,038 2,356,553 1,094,485
Medicare 2,920,971 1,532,764 1,388,207
Other Insurance 537,200 277,105 260,095
Private 45,921 241,876 (195,955)
Other income 36,838 47,707 (10,869)
6,991,968 4,456,005 2,535,963
Expenses:
Medicare Certified Unit 1,702,104 1,528,881 173,223
General Administration 889,731 804,673 85,058
Nursing Administration 873,772 208,941 664,831
Dietary 532,086 327,150 204,936
Employee Benefits 381,503 383,164 (1,661)
Physical, Occupational & Speech Therapy 263,149 226,774 36,375
Activities, Education & Soda Shop 221,830 135,426 86,404
Housekeeping and Laundry 216,534 178,222 38,312
Medical Records, Central Supply, Pharmacy 197,425 121,826 75,599
Plant Operations & Maintenance 193,076 216,868 (23,792)
Taxes, Insurance, Depreciation, Interest 137,286 168,705 (31,419)
5,608,496 4,300,630 1,307,866
Net income <Loss> 1,383,472 155,375 1,228,097
Eden Valley Care Center by Type 29-Feb-24 28-Feb-23 Variance
Revenues - Net
Medi-Cal 3,451,038 2,356,553 1,094,485
Medicare 2,920,971 1,532,764 1,388,207
Other Insurance 537,200 277,105 260,095
Private 45,921 241,876 (195,955)
Other Income 36,838 47,707 (10,869)
6,991,968 4,456,005 2,535,963
Expenses:
Salaries 2,731,339 2,510,545 220,794
Professional Fees 1,052,911 351,259 701,652
Supplies 638,013 286,280 351,733
Benefits 614,292 599,644 14,648
Utilities 191,534 191,608 (74)
Other Operating Expenses 143,318 83,106 60,212
Purchased Services 103,939 113,422 (9,483)
Insurance 88,046 113,830 (25,784)
Depreciation 45,104 50,936 (5,832)
5,608,496 4,300,630 1,307,866
Net Income <Loss> 1,383,472 155,375 1,228,097




Soledad Community Health Care District

Account Summaries

Soledad Medical Clinic / Women's Health Center 29-Feb-24 28-Feb-23 Variance
Revenues - Net
Gross Revenues 8,486,703 9,131,867 (645,164)
Contractual Adjustments (4,365,055) (4,617,082) 252,027
Other Revenues 20,833 200,929 (180,096)
4,142,481 4,715,714 (573,233)
Expenses:
Salaries 1,354,031 1,625,099 (271,068)
Professional Fees 851,875 974,157 (122,282)
Doctors 802,866 680,740 122,126
Supplies 529,342 607,561 (78,219)
Employee Benefits 297,775 376,743 (78,968)
Depreciation 289,478 288,168 1,310
Interest Expense 118,701 135,414 (16,713)
Utilities 82,903 73,191 9,712
Purchased Services 57,422 40,987 16,435
Insurance 54,454 53,312 1,142
Other Operating Expenses 48,857 63,205 (14,348)
4,487,704 4,918,577 (430,873)
Net Income <Loss> (345,223) (202,863) (142,360)
Summary of Income by Month February Jul - Jan Total
Eden Valley Care Center 188,504 1,240,072 1,428,576
Soledad Medical Clinic / Women's Health Center 44,882 649,373 694,255
District (116,614) (451,421) (568,035)
Sub-Total 116,772 1,438,024 1,554,796
Estimated PPS - (750,000) (750,000)
Depreciation (41,858) (292,997) (334,855)
Totals 74,914 395,027 469,941

12



Soledad Community Health Care District

Account Summaries

Summary of Cash Flows:

Cash Flows for the Eight Months Ended:

Increase <Decrease> in Net Assets 469,941
Add: Increase in Third Party Settlement (Current Year) 750,000
Depreciation 334,855
Increase in Accounts Payable 50,333
Less: Decrease in Accrued Payroll (35,679)
Increase in Prepaids (80,391)
Payment of Long-Term Debt (85,077)
Payment of Third Party Settlement (174,394)
Increase in Accounts Receivable (212,044)
Decrease in Line of Credit (250,000)
Increase <Decrease> in Cash 767,544

13



SOLEDAD COMMUNITY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Budget to Actual Summary

Operating Budget FY 2023-2024 February 29, 2024
Total Total Eden Valley Clinic District
Budget YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD
Operational Revenues:
Gross Patient Revenues 15,675,040 15,117,359 6,630,656 8,486,703 -
Contractual Adjustments (5,377,435) (4,040,581) 324,474 (4,365,055) -
Other Operating Revenues 111,490 184,574 36,829 19,707 128,038
10,409,095 11,261,352 6,991,959 4,141,355 128,038
Operational Expenditures:
Salaries 5,286,120 4,574,632 2,731,339 1,354,031 489,262
Professional Fees 2,120,935 2,829,641 1,052,911 1,654,741 121,989
Employee Benefits 1,060,595 987,018 614,292 297,775 74,951
Supplies 939,470 1,182,375 638,013 529,342 15,020
Utilities 273,800 274,437 191,534 82,903 -
Insurance & Taxes 216,565 226,327 92,181 70,067 64,079
Purchased Services 215,870 214,763 103,939 57,422 53,402
Other Operating Expenses 152,265 231,265 127,099 28,774 75,392
Rents & Leases 31,395 33,066 12,084 4,470 16,512
10,297,015 10,553,524 5,563,392 4,079,525 910,607
Gross Margin 112,080 707,828 1,428,567 61,830 (782,569)
General & Administrative
Allocation of District Expenditures - - 546,364 364,243 (910,607)
Depreciation 332,985 334,855 45,104 289,478 273
Total General & Administrative 332,985 334,855 591,468 653,721 (910,334)
Net Margin (220,905) 372,973 837,099 (591,891) 127,765
Other income <Expenditure>
Property Tax Revenues 272,170 213,715 - - 213,715
Grants and Contributions 177,835 120 - - 120
Investment Income 1,565 1,834 9 1,126 699
Interest Expense (164,000) (118,701) - (118,701) -
287,570 96,968 9 (117,575) 214,534
Net Surplus <Deficit> 66,665 469,941 837,108 {709,466) 342,299

14



SOLEDAD COMMUNITY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Eden Valley Care Center - Budget to Actual

Operating Budget FY 2023-2024

February 29, 2024

Operational Revenues:
Gross Patient Revenues
Contractual Adjustments
Other Operating Revenues

Operational Expenditures:
Salaries
Professional Fees
Supplies
Employee Benefits
Utilities
Other Operating Expenses
Purchased Services
Insurance & Taxes
Rents & Leases

Gross Margin
General & Administrative
Allocation of District Expenditures
Depreciation
Total General & Administrative
Net Margin
Other Income <Expenditure>

Grants and Contributions
Investment Income

Net Surplus <Deficit>

Eden Valley 8 Months 8 Months
Care Center Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance

8,915,050 5,943,370 6,630,656 687,286
333,850 222,565 324,474 101,909
81,745 54,495 36,829 (17,666)
9,330,645 6,220,430 6,991,959 771,529
4,532,775 3,021,850 2,731,339 290,511
449,400 299,600 1,052,911 (753,311)
600,200 400,135 638,013 (237,878)
962,370 641,580 614,292 27,288
283,400 188,935 191,534 (2,599)
113,800 75,865 127,099 {51,234)
130,500 87,000 103,939 (16,939)
184,000 122,665 92,181 30,484
18,000 12,000 12,084 (84)
7,274,445 4,849,630 5,563,392 (713,762)
2,056,200 1,370,800 1,428,567 57,767
827,100 551,400 546,364 5,036
65,700 43,800 45,104 (1,304)
892,800 595,200 591,468 3,732
1,163,400 775,600 837,099 61,499
15,000 10,000 - (10,000)

- - 9 9
15,000 10,000 9 (9,991)
1,178,400 785,600 837,108 51,508

15



SOLEDAD COMMUNITY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Medical Clinic - Budget to Actual

Operating Budget FY 2023-2024

February 29, 2024

Medical Clinic 8 Months 8 Months
Womens Health Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Operational Revenues:
Gross Patient Revenues 14,597,500 9,731,670 8,486,703 ‘ (1,244,967)
Contractual Adjustments (8,400,000) (5,600,000) (4,365,055) 1,234,945
Other Operating Revenues 75,500 50,330 19,707 (30,623)
6,273,000 4,182,000 4,141,355 (40,645)
Operational Expenditures:
Professional Fees 2,582,000 1,721,335 1,654,741 66,594
Salaries 2,461,600 1,641,065 1,354,031 287,034
Supplies 796,125 530,750 529,342 1,408
Employee Benefits 534,150 356,100 297,775 58,325
Utilities 127,300 84,865 82,903 1,962
Insurance & Taxes 116,850 77,900 70,067 ’ 7,833
Purchased Services 118,300 78,870 57,422 21,448
Other Operating Expenses 46,600 31,065 28,774 2,291
Rents & Leases 9,650 6,435 4,470 1,965
6,792,575 4,528,385 4,079,525 448,860
Gross Margin (519,575) (346,385) 61,830 408,215
General & Administrative
Allocation of District Expenditures 551,400 367,600 364,243 3,357
Depreciation 432,275 288,185 289,478 {1,293)
Total General & Administrative 983,675 655,785 653,721 2,064
Net Margin (1,503,250) (1,002,170} (591,891) 410,279
Other Income <Expenditure>
Grants and Contributions 241,750 161,170 - (161,170)
Investment Income 1,600 1,065 1,126 61
Interest Expense {246,000) {164,000) (118,701) 45,299
(2,650) (1,765) (117,575) (115,810)
Net Surplus <Deficit> (1,505,900) (1,003,935} (709,466) 294,469

16



SOLEDAD COMMUNITY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

District - Budget to Actual
Operating Budget FY 2023-2024

February 29, 2024

Operational Revenues:
Gross Patient Revenues
Contractual Adjustments
Other Operating Revenues

General & Administrative (District)
Salaries
Professional Fees
Other Expenses
Employee Benefits
Insurance
Purchased Services
Rents & Leases
Supplies

Gross Margin

General & Administrative
Allocation of District Expenditures
Depreciation
Total General & Administrative

Net Margin
Other Income <Expenditure>
Property Taxes

Grants and Contributions
Investment Income

Net Surplus <Deficit>

8 Months 8 Months

District Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
10,000 6,665 128,038 121,373
10,000 6,665 128,038 121,373
934,810 623,205 489,262 133,943
150,000 100,000 121,989 (21,989)
68,000 45,335 75,392 (30,057)
94,375 62,915 74,951 (12,036)
24,000 16,000 64,079 (48,079)
75,000 50,000 53,402 (3,402)
19,440 12,960 16,512 (3,552)
12,875 8,585 15,020 (6,435)
1,378,500 919,000 910,607 8,393
(1,368,500) {912,335) (782,569) 129,766
{1,378,500) (919,000} (910,607) {8,393)
1,500 1,000 273 727
(1,377,000) (918,000) (910,334) (7,666)
8,500 5,665 127,765 122,100
408,250 272,170 213,715 (58,455)
10,000 6,665 120 (6,545)
750 500 699 199
419,000 279,335 214,534 (64,801)
427,500 285,000 342,299 57,299

17



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SOLEDAD COMMUNITY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
ADOPTING A STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of California has declared that the deposit and
investment of public funds by local officials and local agencies is an issue of statewide concern
(California Government Code Sections 53600.6 and 53630.1); and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Soledad Community Health
Care District (the “District”) may invest surplus monies not required for the immediate

necessities of the District in accordance with the provisions of California Government Code
Sections 16429.1 and 53600 ef seq.; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 53646, the District may
annually approve at a public meeting a Statement of Investment Policy prepared by the Chief
Executive Officer of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board has been presented with a Statement of Investment Policy,
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference; and

WHEREAS, the Board, with the aid of its staff, has reviewed the Statement of
Investment Policy and now wishes to approve the same and provide for delegation of authority.

- NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED by
the Board of Directors of the Soledad Community Health Care District as follows:

1. The above recitals are true and correct, and the Board of the District so finds and
determines.

2. The Statement of Investment Policy, as provided in Exhibit A hereto, is hereby
approved and adopted.

3. The District hereby delegates management responsibility of the District’s

investment program to the Chief Executive Officer of the District for a one-year period.

4. The Chief Executive Officer of the District may establish accounts and funds for
the purposes described in the Policy.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately after its adoption on the date hereof.

sk sk sfe ok sfe sfe s sfesfesle sk sheoskok

Soledad Community Health Care District
Resolution Approving Statement of Investment Policy

18

38108.00001\42056815.1



PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Soledad Community Health Care

District this day of

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

ATTEST:

By:

2024, by the following vote:

By:

Graig Stephens,
President of the Board

Rosemary Guidotti,
Secretary to the Board

38108.00001\42056815.1

Soledad Community Health Care District
Resolution Approving Statement of Investment Policy

19



EXHIBIT A

SOLEDAD COMMUNITY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
INVESTMENT POLICY

[ATTACH]

Exhibit A
Soledad Community Health Care District
Resolution Approving Statement of Investment Poliazo



Soledad Community Health Care District
Investment Policy

Section 1. Purpose

The purpose of this investment policy (the “Policy™) is to provide guidelines for the prudent
investment of the Soledad Community Health Care District’s (the “District”) surplus monies not
required for the immediate necessities of the District in accordance with federal, state, and other
legal requirements, including applicable portions of California Government Code Sections 53600
through 53686.

Section 2. Scope

This Policy applies to the investment of all District funds, excluding CalPERS, OPEB
trusts, the investment of employees’ deferred compensation funds, and bond/debt proceeds
invested pursuant to their bond documents. Proceeds of any debt/bond issuance shall be invested
in accordance with the permitted investment provisions of their specific bond documents.

Section 3. Prudence

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing,
including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and anticipated needs of the District,
which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own
affairs. The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent investor”
standard (California Government Code Section 53600.3). Investment officers acting in accordance
with written procedures and the Policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal
responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations
from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse
developments.

Section 4. Objectives

As specified in California Government Code Section 53600.5, when investing, reinvesting,
purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and managing funds of the District, the objectives, in
priority order, of the investment activities shall be:

a. Safety. Safety of principal is the primary objective of the Policy. Investments of
the District shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the
overall portfolio.

b. Liquidity. The investment portfolio of the District will remain sufficiently liquid
to enable the District to meet all operating requirements that might be reasonably anticipated and
to meet its cash flow requirements.

38108.00001\42056837.1
21



c. Return on Investments. The investment portfolio of the District shall be designed
with the objective of attaining a return, taking into account the investment risk constraints and the
cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. The objective of maximizing return on investments
should be done only after ensuring safety and liquidity.

Section 5. Delegation of Authority

Authority to manage the investment program is derived from California Government Code
Section 53600, et seq. Pursuant to Government Code Section 53607, management responsibility
for the investment program is hereby delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the District. Such
delegation of authority is for a one-year period and may be renewed annually by the Board of
Directors of the District (the “Board”). Pursuant to Government Code Section 53607, as long as
the aforementioned delegation authority is renewed, the Chief Executive Officer shall submit a
monthly investment report of transactions to the Board as provided herein. The Chief Executive
Officer may establish accounts and funds in the name of the District for the purposes described
herein.

The Board may also delegate day-to-day investment decision making and execution
authority to an investment advisor. The advisor shall follow the Policy herein and such other

written instructions as are provided.

Section 6. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

Investment officials and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from
personal business activities that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the
investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial decisions. Investment
officials shall disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the
performance of the District’s investment portfolio. Employees and investment officials shall
refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom
business is conducted on behalf of the District.

Section 7. Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers

The Chief Executive Officer of the District may maintain a list of financial institutions,
selected on the basis of credit worthiness, financial strength, experience and minimal capitalization
authorized to provide investment services. In addition, a list may also be maintained of approved
security brokers/dealers selected by credit worthiness who are authorized to provide investment
and financial advisory services in the State of California. No public deposit shall be made except
in a qualified public depository as established by state laws.

Section 8. Authorized and Suitable Investments

District funds may be invested as authorized by California Government Code Sections
16429.1, 53601 and 53601.8, and subject to the limitations and conditions of California
Government Code Section 53600 et seq. Bond proceeds shall be invested in securities permitted
by the applicable bond documents.

38108.00001\42056837.1
22



Section 9. Collateralization

Collateral must be held by a third-party trustee and valued on a monthly basis. The
percentage of collateralization on repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements will adhere to the
amount required under California Government Code Section 53601(j)(2). The percentage of
collateralization on active or inactive deposits will adhere to the amounts required under California
Government Code Section 53652.

Section 10. Safekeeping and Custody

All securities purchased or acquired shall be delivered to the District by book entry,
physical delivery or by third-party custodial agreement as required by California Government
Code Section 53601.

Section 11. Diversification

The District will diversify its investments by security type and institution. It is the policy
of the District to diversify its investment portfolio. Assets shall be diversified to eliminate the risk
of loss resulting from overconcentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or a
specific class of securities.

Section 12.  Reporting

In compliance with Government Code Section 53607, and so long as authority has been
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 5 herein, the Chief Executive Officer
shall prepare a monthly investment report within thirty (30) days following the end of each month
to be reported to the Board. The report will include a management summary that provides an
analysis of the status of the current investment portfolio and the individual transactions executed
over the last month, including all transactions for that month related to the investment or
reinvestment of District funds and all sales and exchanges of securities.

Section 13. Investment Policy Adoption

The Policy shall be adopted by resolution of the Board. The Policy shall be reviewed on an
annual basis, and the Chief Executive Officer may annually render to the Board a statement of
investment policy, which the Board must consider at a public meeting. Any modifications to this
Policy must be considered and approved by the Board at a public meeting.

38108.00001\42056837.1
23



1.1

2.1

2.2

23

3.1

4.1

BYLAWS
OF
SOLEDAD COMMUNITY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

(Amended and Restated by Action of Board of Directors March [__], 2024)

ARTICLEI PRINCIPAL OFFICE

Principal Office. The principal office of Soledad Community Health Care District (“District™)
shall be located at 612 Main Street, Soledad, California, 93960.

ARTICLEII PURPOSES

Organization. The District is organized and operated pursuant to Division 23 of the California
Health and Safety Code, known as the Local Health Care District Law.

Purpose. The District exists for purposes related to community health needs and for the following
general purposes:

2.2.1 Encourage competent health care at reasonable cost.
2.2.2  Attract qualified and competent health care practitioners to the District.
2.2.3  Oversee sound organizational methods and efficient financial management.

2.2.4 To do any and all other acts necessary to carry out the provisions of the Local Health Care
District Law, codified at California Health & Safety Code 32000, et seq.

Dedication. The District is irrevocably dedicated to hospital, scientific, and educational purposes,
and fully empowered to receive and administer funds for the attainment of these objectives, all in
accordance with the purpose and powers set forth in the Local Health Care District Law.

ARTICLE III TITLE TO PROPERTY

Authority of Board. The title, direction, and control of all property owned by the District is vested
in the Board of Directors (“Board”), and the signatures of the President and the Secretary as
authorized shall constitute the proper authority for the purchase or sale of property, or for the
investment of other disposal of trust funds which are subject to the control of the District. The
Board may, by resolution, authorize other or different signatories if it determines that such
authorization is necessary.

ARTICLE IV SURPLUS REVENUE

Profit or Gain. There shall be no contemplation of profit or pecuniary gain, and no distribution of
profits to any individual, under any guise whatsoever, nor shall there be any distribution of assets
or surpluses to any individual on the dissolution of this District.

1

38108.00001\42120789.6

24



42

5.1

52

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

Disposition of Surplus Revenue. Should the operation of the District result in a surplus of revenue
over expenses, such surplus may be used and dealt with by the Board of Directors as they determine
within the limits of the Local Health Care District Law and these Bylaws.

ARTICLEV SCOPE OF BYLAWS

Definition. These Bylaws shall be known as the District Bylaws, and shall govern the Soledad
Community Health Care District, its Board of Directors, and all of its affiliated and subordinate
organizations and groups.

Delegation. The Board of Directors may delegate certain powers as appropriate and in accordance
with the Local Health Care District Law. No assignment, referral or delegation of authority by the
Board of Directors shall preclude the Board of Directors from exercising the authority required to
meet its responsibilities for operation of the District. The Board of Directors shall retain the right
to rescind any such delegation.

ARTICLE VI POWERS OF DISTRICT

Powers. The District shall have and exercise the powers set forth in Section 32121 of the California
Health and Safety Code.

ARTICLE VIIDIRECTORS

Qualification and Number. The Board of Directors shall consist of five (5) members, each of
whom shall be a registered voter residing in the District. Members shall be elected by the registered
voters residing in the District, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 32100 and following.
Terms shall be set in accordance with the Local Health Care District Law and California Uniform
District Election Law.

The Brown Act. The District shall cause each Board member and any person elected to serve as a
member of the Board who has not assumed the duties of office to receive a copy of California
Government Code Sections 54950-54962, known as the Ralph M. Brown Act.

Duties. Duties of individual Board members include, but are not necessarily limited to:

7.3.1 Attend board meetings.

7.3.2 Attend meetings of committees to which the member is assigned.

7.3.3 Relate community input to the Board.

7.3.4 Represent the District in a positive and effective manner in public forums.

7.3.5 As appropriate, be politically active on behalf of the District and its interests and needs.

7.3.6 Learn enough details about health care services so that a Board member can effectively
question reports of both institutional managers and the professional staff and evaluate the
answers.

38108.00001\42120789.6

25



7.4

7.5

7.6

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

7.3.7 Accept and fulfill reasonable assignments from the President of the Board.
7.3.8 Participate in the orientation of new Board members, if requested.

7.3.9 Become familiar with the provisions of Government Code Sections 54950- 54962, known
as the Ralph M. Brown Act.

7.3.10 All powers of the Board of Directors, which are not restricted by statute, may be delegated
by an employment agreement, policies, and by direction of the Board to the Chief
Executive Officer or to others employed by or with responsibilities to the District, to be
exercised in accordance with that delegation.

Vacancies and Removal of Directors. If a Board member is absent from three (3) consecutive
regular meetings, or from three (3) of any five (5) consecutive meetings of the Board, the Board
may, by resolution, declare that a vacancy on the Board exists.

7.4.1 Filling Vacancies. Vacancies so created or vacancies created by other means, such as
resignation, death, or moving out of the boundaries of the District, shall be filled by the
methods provided by law.

Compensation. The members of the Board each shall be reimbursed for actual necessary travel
and incidental expenses incurred in the performance of the official business of the District as
approved by the Board and shall receive such compensation as approved by the Board in
accordance with the Local Health Care District Law.

Conflict of Interest. No Board member shall realize economic gain from an action of the Board in
which that Board member participated. Board members shall be required to follow the Conflict of
Interest Code adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VIII MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held monthly on the last Thursday of
each month at 4 p.m. at the offices of Eden Valley Care Center, 612 Main Street, Soledad, CA
93960. The Board may from time to time, by majority vote, change the time and place of a regular
meeting.

Agenda. The District shall post an agenda complying with Government Code Section54954.2 at
least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting.

Adjournment. If all members of the Board are absent from a regular meeting, the Board clerk shall
declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place. The Board clerk shall case a notice of
adjournment to be posted within 24 hours after the adjournment. He/she shall also cause a written
notice of adjournment to be mailed to each Board member at least 24 hours before the time and
date to which the meeting is adjourned.

Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President of the Board or
by three (3) directors. The District shall deliver a written notice of a special meeting to all Board
members at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting as specified in the notice. The District

3

38108.00001\42120789.6

26



8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

9.1

9.2

93

9.4

shall post the notice of the special meeting at least 24 hours prior to the special meeting in a location
that is freely accessible to members of the public. This 24 hour notice requirement shall not apply
in an “emergency situation” as defined in California Government Code Section 54956.5.

Quorum. For regular and special meetings of the Board, a quorum shall be three (3) members.

Majority Vote. All actions of the Board shall be taken by majority, consisting of at least three (3)
of the Board members. No action shall be taken by the Board, however, by secret ballot, whether
preliminary or final.

Public Meetings. All meetings of the Board, whether regular, special or adjourned, shall be open
and public, except as may be allowed for closed sessions under the Brown Act, and all persons
shall be permitted to attend any meeting, unless otherwise provided by law. Public testimony on
a particular issue shall be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes for each individual speaker
for each issue. The Board may, however, at its discretion, allow for more time if deemed
appropriate or necessary.

Minutes. A record of proceedings of all public meetings of the Board shall be kept on file.
ARTICLE IX OFFICERS

Positions. The officers of the Board shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and
Treasurer.

Election of Officers. The Board of Directors shall, at their January meeting, subsequent to the
Health Care District General Elections, elect the officers from among its own members.

Term of Office. Officers are elected for a period of two (2) years and shall serve until a successor
is elected. No board member shall serve more than four (4) consecutive terms in the same office.

Duties.
9.4.1 President. The President shall:
9.4.1.1 Preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors.

9.4.1.2  Sign as President and jointly with other officers as appropriate, and execute in
the name of the district, contract, conveyances, and other written instruments
which have been authorized by the Board of Directors.

9.4.1.3  Appoint chairperson and members of board committees.

9.4.2 Vice President. The Vice President shall in the event of death, absence or other inability
of the President, exercise all the powers and perform all the duties herein given to or
imposed upon, the President.

9.4.3 Secretary. The Secretary shall, with the assistance of District staff, maintain accurate and
complete minutes of all meetings, call meetings on order of the President, attend to all

38108.00001\42120789.6

27



9.5

10.1

9.4.4

94.5

correspondence, execute contracts and conveyances and all other instruments in writing,
and perform such other duties as ordinarily pertained to this office.

Treasurer. The District shall establish its own treasury and shall appoint a Treasurer
charged with the safekeeping and dispersal of the funds in the treasury of the District. The
Board Treasurer may rely on District staff to assist with the duties of Board Treasurer.

Chief Executive Officer. The Board of Directors shall employ and discharge the Chief
Executive Officer and shall specify terms and conditions of the person’s employment. The
performance of the Chief Executive Officer will be evaluated on an annual basis by the
Board based on performance criteria established from time to time by the Board. The Chief
Executive Officer shall be responsible for the overall management of the District and has
the necessary and full authority to effect this responsibility subject to the Board of
Director’s oversight, any policies and directives issued by the Board of Directors. The
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the management of the District and all of its
departments and activities. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the retention,
performance, and continued employment of the District’s staff.

Vacancies and Removal of Board Officers.

95.1

9.5.2

Vacancy. Vacancy in any Board office shall be filled by a vote of the majority of the Board
as soon as is reasonably possible.

Removal. Officers may be removed by vote of three (3) board members for failure to
perform the duties of the office or for malfeasance in office.

ARTICLE X COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

General Provisions.

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

Committees of the Board shall be standing or ad hoc. The committee members and chair
shall be voted on by the Board.

All committees shall be advisory to the Board unless otherwise specified by the Board,
whose purpose and progress shall be periodically reviewed by the Board.

Each Committee, Standing or Ad Hoc, shall be assigned two (2) District Directors, one of
whom shall be the committee chair. Non-District Board Directors (“Community
Members”) may be appointed as advisory members of the committee, and they will serve
without a vote. Community Members may be recommended to the District Board Chair
by the Committee Chair, or any other source within the District or the community.
Proposed Community Members shall be residents of the District, and shall be interviewed
by the Board or Committee Chair, or both, and shall submit a curriculum vitae for Board
review. The Board will act upon the recommendation for appointment coming from the
Board Chair for a term subject to annual renewal when Committee appointments are
approved as provided in Section 10.1.2 above. Upon appointment and upon any annual
renewal of appointment, Community Members shall submit a Conflict of Interest

38108.00001\42120789.6

28



Disclosure Statement to the District. The Board Chair shall be an ex officio member of
Standing Committees, but may vote only if an actual member of the committee.

10.1.4 Each District Director member of a committee shall be entitled to vote on the committee.

10.1.5 The committees shall be assisted by staff and consultants to the District in the manner set
forth by policies and procedures of the Board.

10.2  Standing Committees. Standing Committees of the Board shall be the following: Finance
Committee. Standing Committees shall hold meetings at times as agreed by the committee
members or ad directed by the Board, but no less than quarterly, unless otherwise set forth in these
Bylaws. At a Standing Committee meeting a quorum shall be two of the two District Board
committee members. If only one District Board committee member is present, a record of the
proceedings shall be kept, but no action may be taken. There shall be a Standing Committee
meeting agenda and packet, which shall be prepared in advance and distributed to Committee
members in accordance with the Brown Act.

10.2.1 Finance Committee.

10.2.1.1 The Finance Committee, with the advice of the District chief executive officer
and chief financial officer, is responsible for:

(a) Recommending financial policies, goals and budgets that support the mission,
values and strategic goals of the District;

(b)  Reviewing the District’s financial performance against its goals, budgets, long term
trends and industry benchmarks;

(c) Recommending to the Board policies governing investments and pension plans; and
(d) Reviewing and recommending the annual budget at the end of each fiscal year for

10.2.1.2 The Finance Committee shall meet at least four (4) times a year, or when
necessary at the call of the committee chairperson.

10.3 Ad Hoc Committees. Ad Hoc Committees may be established by a majority vote of the Board,
for special, defined tasks. Each Ad Hoc Committee shall limit its activities to the accomplishment
of the task for which it was established, and upon completion of that task, the Ad Hoc Committee
shall be discharged by the Board. The Board shall determine the number of members for Ad Hoc
Committees which shall include a maximum of two (2) District Board Directors. All Ad-Hoc
Committees’ purpose and progress shall be reviewed annually by the Board.

ARTICLE XI INDEMNIFICATION

11.1  Indemnification of Directors and Officers. Directors and officers shall be indemnified to the full
extent permitted by law against all claims, liabilities and expenses incurred as a result of an action
by the Board, except in the instance of willful misconduct in the performance of duties as a director
or officer.

38108.00001\42120789.6
29



12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

ARTICLE XII GENERAL PROVISIONS

Execution of Contracts. The Board, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, may authorize
any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract, to execute any contract or to
execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the District.

Seal. The District shall have a seal and may alter said seal at its pleasure.

Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the District shall commence on the first day of July of each year
and shall end on the last day of June of each year.

Annual Audit. The affairs and financial condition of the District shall be audited annually at the
end of each fiscal year by a Certified Public Accountant selected by the board and a written report
of such audit and appropriate financial statements submitted to the Board. Additional audits may
be authorized as considered necessary or desirable by the Board.

Review of Bylaws. The Bylaws of the Board should be reviewed at least every two (2) years and
revised as necessary.

Amendment. These Bylaws may be amended at any properly noticed meeting of the Board by a
majority of three (3) Board members.

Adoption. Adoption of Bylaws shall be by a majority of three (3) Board members, at any properly
noticed meeting of the Board.

38108.00001\42120789.6

30



CERTIFICATION BY SECRETARY

I am the duly elected Secretary of the Board of Directors of Soledad Community Health Care
District. I hereby certify that the attached Bylaws are a true and correct copy of the Bylaws of the
District with all amendments thereto effective March , 2024.

Rosemary Guidotti, Secretary
Board of Directors
Soledad Community Health Care District

38108.00001\42120789.6 31



o,

Soledad Community

HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

POLICY TITLE: Public Records Request Act

PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST

2425.1 Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure compliance with the California Public Records Act - Government
Code Section 7920.000 et seq.

2425.2 Scope:

This policy applies to all requests for inspection of and/or access to copies of Soledad Community Health
Care District (SCHCD) documents to which the public has a right to access.

2425.3 Definitions:
A. “Act” means the California Public Records Act (Government Code §7920.000 et seq.)

B. “Requester” means a person submitting a PRA Request requesting inspection or copies of a Public
Record.

C. “PRA Request” means a request in any form, and containing the information set forth in Paragraph C
of these Procedures, for inspection or copies of a public record.

D. “Guidelines” means the “Guidelines for Accessibility of the Public Records of the Soledad Community
Health Care District”.

E. “Person” includes any natural person, corporation, partnership, firm or association.
F. “Procedures” means the procedures set forth in this document.

G. “Public Records” includes any Writing containing information relating to the conduct of the business
of the District prepared, owned, used or retained by the District regardless of physical form of
characteristics. Public records shall also include any Writings relating to the conduct of the business of
the District that may be stored on personal devices or accounts of District officers or employees.

H. “Writing” means handwriting, typewriting, printing, photo stating, photographing, and every other
means of recording upon any form of communication or representation, including letters, words,
pictures, sounds or symbols, or combination thereof, and all papers, maps, magnetic or paper tapes,
photographic films and prints, discs, and other documents. Writing includes computer files and records
excluding software developed by the District.

2425.4 Procedure:

A. PRA Request: District staff shall encourage, but not require, any person desiring to inspect the
District’s public records to submit a written PRA Request on a form approved and provided by the
District. The form shall contain the following information to assist District staff in processing the PRA
Request:

1. The name, address and contact information for the Requester.

32



Soledad Cominunity

HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

2. A description of the records requested with sufficient specificity to enable District staff to identify and
locate the records.

3. Whether the Requester is seeking a copy of the requested records and/or an opportunity to review
the records.

B. District’s Response to PRA Request

1. All requests will be brought to the attention of the CEO, or in her/his absence, the Board President, at
the earliest time practicable after receiving the request.

2. Within ten (10) days of receipt of an Application, the District CEO or Board President must determine
if the requested public records are covered by the Act.

3. Once determined the requested information is a public record and is retrievable, the District must
notify the Applicant within 10 days of receipt of the Application the timeframe for retrieving and copying
the information, and if any fee will be charged.

4. Pursuant to Government Code section 7922.535, the deadline set forth in Paragraph (B)(3) above may
be extended by an additional 24 days in the event that the following “unusual circumstances” apply,
provided that District staff informs the Requester of the extension within 10 days of receipt of the PRA
Request:

C. Documents Exempt from Public Disclosure:

i.  The need to search for and collect the requested records from field facilities or other
establishments separate from the office processing the request;

ii. The need to search for, collect and appropriately examine a voluminous amount of separate and
distinct records contained in a single request

jii. The need to consult with another agency having substantial interest in the request (such as a
state agency), or among two or more components of the District (such as two District
departments) with substantial interest in the request; or

iv. Questions of whether any record or portion thereof is exempt from disclosure will be referred to
the District’s General Counsel who, in consultation with the Board President and CEO, shall be
responsible for determining whether exemption should be claimed. The decision of the Chair
shall be final, subject to appeal to the District Board at its next regular meeting.

V. In the case of electronic records, the need to compile data, write programming language or a
computer program, or to construct a computer report to extract data.

vi.  The copying of requested Public Records shall be accomplished by the District staff as soon as

reasonably practicable after the request without disruption of the normal business of the
District.

33



Soledad Community

HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

C. Documents Exempt from Public Disclosure:

1. Under the Act, the District may determine that the record(s) being sought is/are
“exempt” from public disclosure. Exempt records include, but are not limited to:

a. Preliminary drafts that are not retained in the ordinary course of business and
for which the public interest served by not disclosing the records clearly
outweighs the public interest served by disclosure;

b. Certain records pertaining to litigation to which the District is party (until the
pending litigation or claim has been settled);

c. Attorney-client communications and attorney work product; and

d. Personnel, medical, or other similar files the disclosure of which would
constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy.

D. Time and Place of Inspection

1. The requested records may be inspected during the normal office hours of the District (8:00 a.m. to
5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday-excluding holidays).

2. The inspection of Public Records is subject to a rule of reason as to time and duration and must be
consistent with the efficient functioning of the District office.

E. Fees for Copying and Certifying Records
1. Per the Act, the District may charge the Applicant for any copying requested:
a. Twenty five cents ($.25) per page

b. If the requested Writing is a tape, photograph, computer file or other Writing requiring special
equipment and/or time to copy, an estimate of the actual cost of duplicating the requested material will
be obtained by the District from any available source. The Applicant will deposit the amount of the
estimate (which will not be less than ($0.25 per page) with the District prior to copying of the requested
Writing.

c. Cost of mailing (first class) will also be charged unless the Requester makes arrangements to pick the
material up from the District office during normal business hours.

d. If a request for copies of public records is likely to require more than 100 pages of copies, in the good
faith estimate of District staff, a deposit of $10 toward the coping charge shall be obtained from the
person making the request before copies are made.

34



e .

Soledad Cunity

HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

612 Main St. Soledad, CA 93960
(831) 678-2462
APPLICATION FOR INSPECTION & COPYING OF PUBLIC RECORDS

Every person desiring to inspect public records of Soledad Community Health Care District shall first complete
this Application for Inspection & Copying of Public Records form. Please complete all fields, print out form,
and email completed form to: spina@schcd.com. If you have any questions, please contact Sophie Pina at
(831) 223-1651.

Date:

Applicant Name:

Street Address:

City: State: Zip Code:

Applicant Telephone Number:

Applicant Email Address:

Description of records Applicant desires to inspect (please be as specific as possible):

Within ten (10) days of receipt of an application, the District shall determine whether the application seeks
identifiable public records and whether to comply with the request. The District shall immediately thereafter
notify the person submitting the application of the District’s determination and the reasons therefore. In case
of “unusual circumstances”, the District may extend the ten (10) day time limit by providing written notice to
the person making the application.

Does applicant wish for document(s) to be mailed or emailed to them:

Does applicant wish to inspect records at the District office: ? If yes, in conformity with the
District’s guidelines, list the date Applicant would like, if possible, to inspect records at the District
office:

There is a charge of $.25 per photocopied page. Does Applicant desire a photocopy of the above requested
records?

35



SOLEDAD COMMUNITY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
BROWN ACT POLICY

Background and Purpose

The Board of Directors (“Board”), as the legislative body of the Soledad Community Health Care
District (“District™), hereby adopts the following policies regarding the conduct of the District with
respect to the Brown Act and the open and public requirements of District meetings. To that end,
the following protocol will be followed.

Definitions

For purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:
“District” shall mean the Soledad Community Health Care District.
“Board of Directors” shall mean any elected Board sitting on a legislative body of the District.

“BOD Policy and Procedures” shall mean the policies and procedures of the District Board of
Directors.

“Brown Act” shall mean the statutes found at Government Code 54950 et seq. and any related
regulations.

“Political Reform Act of 1974 ” shall mean the statutes found at Government Code 81000 et seq.
and any related regulations.

Policy/Protocols

1. All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be conducted in accordance with the
Brown Act and such additional requirements as set forth in any other BOD Policy and Procedures.

2. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held the last Thursday of each month
at 4 p.m. at the offices of Eden Valley Care Center, 612 Main Street, Soledad, CA 93960. The
Board of Directors may from time to time, by majority vote, change the time and place of a regular
meeting.

3. As the Board of Directors encourages public participation at its meetings (whether
regular, special, study sessions, or emergency) and to facilitate communications, the Board of
Directors will ensure agendas are posted in the required timeframe on the District website in
addition to other legal requirements. The place, date and time of the meeting shall be indicated on
the agenda. Each agenda shall include a time for public comment on non-agenda items as well as
comment opportunity on each action agenda item when called for a vote.

4. The President of the Board of Directors shall preside at all board meetings at which
they are present. In absence of the President, the Vice President shall perform the President's duties

36



and have the President's rights. The President shall call the meeting to order at the time set on the
agenda or as soon as a quorum is present. A majority (3 of 5 members) shall constitute a quorum
for transaction of business. An abstention does not count as a vote for or against. If no directors
are present, the clerk of the Board shall adjourn the meeting to a future date and time. A notice of
the adjournment including the future date and time of the adjourned meeting shall be
conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the meeting was held. If the date of
the adjourned meeting is within five (5) days of the original meeting, no new agenda need be
posted if no additional agenda items are added. If the date of the adjourned meeting is more than
five (5) days a new agenda must be posted. Ordinarily, items on the agenda will be considered in
the order set forth in the agenda. However, the President may alter the order of items on the agenda,
as the President deems necessary for the good of the meeting. The President shall have the same
rights as the other Board members in voting, introducing or seconding motions and resolutions as
well as participating in discussions. No action may be taken by secret ballot (Government Code
Section 54953(c)) and all votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by roll call.
(Government Code Section 54953(b)(2)).

5. The President of the Board of Directors, as necessary to conduct business of the
District, can call special meetings or study sessions in accordance with the Brown Act.

6. The Board of Directors shall observe all applicable conflict of interest rules. If a
financial interest is determined by any Board member they must abstain from any vote that may
be in violation of Government Code 1090 or the Political Reform Act of 1974. The Director shall
leave the meeting room during any discussion and the vote and shall state the reason for abstention.

7. The annual organizational meeting of the District shall be held at a regular Board
of Directors meeting held in the month of January each year or at an earlier meeting if called. At
that meeting officers shall be elected.

37



SOLEDAD COMMUNITY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
TRANSPARENCY LAWS AND SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY

Background and Purpose

The Board of Directors (“Board”), as the legislative body of the Soledad Community Health
Care District (“District”), hereby adopts the following policies regarding the private use of social
media by individual members of the Board. This policy is adopted, in part, in light of California
Assembly Bill No. 992, which authorizes members of a legislative body to use social media to
communicate with the public, subject to statutory exceptions.

The District recognizes that social media has become an integral channel of communication for
individual members of the Board with members of the public. However, such communications
must be balanced against legal obligations with respect to transparency in the conduct of the
people’s business. For example, the Brown Act requires that legislative bodies of public
agencies deliberate and take action openly. (Gov. Code §§ 54950 et seq.). Moreover,
communications regarding Board business on private accounts may be subject to disclosure
under the Public Records Act. (Gov. Code §§ 7920 et seq.) To that end, the following protocol
will be followed.

Definitions

For purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:
“District” shall mean the Soledad Community Health Care District.
“Board of Directors” shall mean any elected Board sitting on a legislative body of the District.

“District business” shall mean information relating to the conduct of the public’s business or
communications concerning matters within the subject matter of the District’s jurisdiction,
including, but not limited to, pending or potential District projects, past or prospective District
agenda items, or District budgets or expenditures involving District funds.

“Social media platforms” means an online service that is “open and accessible to the public.”
“Open and accessible to the public” means that members of the general public have the ability to
access and participate, free of charge, in the social media platform without the approval by the
social media platform or a person or entity other than the social media platform, including any
forum and chatroom, and cannot be blocked from doing so, except when the internet-based social
media platform determines that an individual violated its protocols or rules. Examples of social
media platforms include Snapchat, Instagram, Facebook, Twitter, blogs, TikTok and Reddit.

Policy/Protocols

1. Public Records Act: District officials should be aware that their posts, comments, and
responses about District business on social media platforms, whether on public or private
pages, may be subject to disclosure under the Public Records Act.

38



First Amendment: District officials should also be aware that their private social media

accounts may be transformed into public forums where members of the public may have
First Amendment rights. In determining whether a private social media page has become
a public forum, courts have examined factors including:

A.

How the public official is referenced on the site (i.e., is he or she referenced as
“President” or “Chair,” or simply “Jane Doe”?);

How the page is titled (i.e., is the account registered as a governmental account or
a private account?);

How the public official “invites” users to use the page (i.e., in cases in which the
account was deemed a public one, the public official solicited the public’s opinion
on public matters);

Whether the public official is “transacting” District matters on the site (i.e.,
posting about matters before the District);

Whether District employees help maintain and operate the site; and

Whether the public official uses the site to engage directly with the public (i.e.,
replying to constituent comments regarding District business).

Whether an account is private or public is fact-specific and depends on the totality of the
circumstances. If there are reasons to believe that a District official’s private social media page
has turned into a public forum, District officials should refrain from blocking members of the
public from the page or deleting comments with which they disagree.

3.

Brown Act: District officials may engage in separate conversations or communicate on
social media platforms to answer questions, provide information to the public, or solicit
information from the public regarding District business.

However, a District official may not do either of the following on a social media platform:

A.

Discussion by a majority: Discuss District business with a majority of members of
the same legislative body. That includes communicating, posting, sharing,
commenting, or using digital icons (i.e., a thumbs up or an emoji); and

Direct Responses: Respond directly to another member’s communication,
comment or post if the two are on the same legislative body of the District and the
topic concerns District business.

Penalties. Failure of a District official to abide by this Policy, following its adoption,
may result in any or all of the following:

o Censure;

o Removal from existing or future District Board committees (standing
or ad hoc committees);

39



Removal from a District Board officer position, including Chair of the
Board (if applicable); and

Removal of any other duties other than the official’s duties as a
District Board member.

40



,—ﬂQﬂh .
Soledad Community

HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

FINANCE QUARTERLY COMMITTEE MEETINGS

(LOCATION TBD)

APRIL 17, 2024 —3:30PM

JUNE 5, 2024 - 3:30PM

SEPTEMBER 11, 2024 — 3:30PM

NOVEMBER 13, 2024 — 3:30PM

41



LAFCO of Monterey County

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

2024
Commissioners

Chair

Matt Gourley
Public Member
Vice Chair

Kimbley Craig
City Member

Mary Adams
County Member

Wendy Root Askew
County Member

Mike Bikle
Public Member, Alternate

David Kong
Special District Member, INTERIM

Mary Ann Leffel
Special District Member

Chris Lopez
County Member, Alternate

lan Oglesby
City Member

VACANT
Special District Member

Anna Velazquez
City Member, Alternate

Counsel

Reed Gallogly
General Counsel

Executive Officer

Kate McKenna, AICP

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102
Salinas, CA 93901

P. 0. Box 1369
Salinas, CA 93902

Voice: 831-754-5838

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov

MEMORANDUM

DATE: March 4, 2024

TO: Independent Special District General Managers, Fire Chiefs and
: CEOs

FROM: Kate McKenna, AICP,
. Executive Officer

SUBJECT:  Ballot for Election of LAFCO Commissioner — Special District

Regular Member (Due April 26, 2024)

This memorandum transmits a ballot, voting instructions and candidate information
for the election of one Independent Special District Regular Member to-serve a four-
year term on the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County. Please
forward the ballot and information to the legislative body of your District for voting
and signature by the presiding officer (Board President) or designee.  Vote for one of
the two candidates. The deadline to return the ballot is April 26, 2024. LAFCO may
extend this deadline if more time is needed to obtain ballots from a majority of
Districts.

Thank you for participating in the election process. Please contact me if you have any
questions.

Enclosures:

Ballot and Voting Instructions
Candidate Information

42



LAFCO of Monterey County

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

March 4, 2024

OFFICIAL BALLOT OF THE
INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICT SELECTION COMMITTEE

FOR ELECTION OF ONE REGULAR SPECIAL DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE TOLAFCO

Voting Instructions:

1. The presiding officer of the legislative body of the District or the legislative body’s alternate officer is
authorized to vote. Please vote for one candidate. A majority of Districts must return ballots in order
to conclude the election. The candidate receiving the most votes will be elected to a Regular Member
seat for a four-year term ending in May 2028.

2. Please return this ballot to LAFCO of Monterey County at P.O. Box 1369, Salinas, CA 93902 or at
132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102, Salinas, CA 93901 or by email to mckennak@monterey.lafco.ca.gov .

3. Deadline - Ballots must be received in the LAFCO office by April 26, 2024, at 5:00 p.m. LAFCO
may extend this deadline if more time is needed to obtain ballots from a majority of Districts.

PLEASE VOTE FOR 1 CANDIDATE (REGULAR MEMBER SEAT):

Russell Jeffries (Moss Landing Harbor District)

Chad M. Lindley (Monterey County Regional Fire District)

////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////

VOTING MEMBER SIGNATURE:

INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICT:

DATE:

43



LAFCO
FEB2 9 2024

LAFCO of Monterey County

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICT SELECTION COMMITTEE

NOMINATION FORM
TO DECLARE CANDIDACY AND REQUEST NAME AND STATEMENT ON BALLOTS
FOR ONE REGULAR POSITION ON
THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

Due Date: March 1, 2024

Nominations will be considered to fill the four-year term for one Regular seat (expiring May 1, 2028) for

Independent Special District Commissioner on the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey
County.

Nomination Deadline and Process:

Nominations must be received in the LAFCO Office by Friday, March 1, 2024 at 5:00 p-m. Qualified
persons may submit their own nominations using this form (no Board action is needed). You may email
the completed form to mekenn onterey.lafco.cagov OR mail it to P.O. Box 1369, Salinas, CA 93902
OR hand-deliver it to 132 W, Gabilan Street, Suite 102 in Salinas.

Nomination Statement;

“q, /@f’ ssed/ ﬁ.ﬁf?‘f /et,'ﬁereby declare myself a candidate for the election to the position of Regular
Commissioner of the LAFCO of Monterey County. I am an elected or appointed Monterey County
Independent Special District board member or trustee residing within the county and not a member of a
legislative body of a city or county. I request my name be placed on the official ballot and, if elected, I will
qualify and aceept the office of Regular LAFCO Commissioner for which I am selected and serve to the
best of my ability.”

Nominee Information:

Name: ,/‘«‘?&’%ﬁ%ﬁs & // (0».?‘&7‘525 » A E SN /€S

Addvess. 2ot £, denel’s ST Sali-os Za_2390G
Phone and e-mail: 52/-240- 0/

. » . K o i g ’ - T a——/
District represented: A9 0SS /£ d i o s8 S ALA L& (245 LTI
Your position with the District: oo 52 20 1800 A £

Number of years as a District Board Member or Trustee: 2K ;gﬂo;f“'ﬁ A<

Candidate Statement for the Ballot:

Please give reasons for wanting to be an elected LAFCO Commissioner and briefly summarize
qualifications and background:

g
K Sern ATACMES App l128T 100 ahd _gecrme

Page 1 of 2

44



FEB 2 9 2024
19 February 2024

Candidate Statement by Russell M. Jeffries for Appointment to the
Position of Special District Representative on the Monterey County
LAFCO Board of Commissioners

My name is Russell M. Jeffries and | am a lifelong resident of Monterey County. | was born in
Pacific Grove, attended Salinas area schools, and graduated from Hartnell College. My resume is
herewith attached and made a part of my application. Kindly review my resume for a full
understanding of my experience and qualifications.

In 1996, | became a member of the publicly elected Moss Landing Harbor District Board of
Commissioners and have continuously served as a member of that special district board for over
2.5 decades. The Moss Landing Harbor District contains more Monterey County residents than
the population of two County Supervisorial Districts. Its area extends from the Pajaro River in
the north to farmlands south of Salinas and encompasses much of the former Fort Ord. | was a
co-founding member of the Special Districts Association of Monterey County in 2003, and | was
honored to be named as the “2022 Board Member of the Year” by our statewide California
Special Districts Association.

Previously, I have served as a local school board member, a city council member and Mayor, and

| have served for 21 years as a gubernatorial appointee (by three governors) to the Central Coast
Regional Water Quality Control Board (1993-2014).

I believe that the special districts of Monterey County deserve to be represented on LAFCO by a
knowledgeable, experienced, and thoughtful individual who can bring to LAFCO meetings a
broad, impartial, and detailed understanding of how our local agencies actually function. To
provide services to our citizens, | believe that LAFCO members should be sincere listeners who
are prepared to conduct their own independent research so as to be comfortable that the basis

for their decisions is both factually and intellectually sound. Given my past experiences, | have
those skills.

Moreover, | have broad budgetary experience and managerial skills that should be helpfui in
resolving any future financial issues that may arise for LAFCO. | would bring a commitment to
fairmindedness, impartiality, and respect for our citizens with a recognition of the many
nuanced issues that affect the quality of life in Monterey County that we all value.,

| respectfully request your favorable consideration of my appointment application. Thank you.

— J
Q / ,wa-ﬁf"' ﬁ!bw/‘i / W /f <X

Russell M. Jeffries

45



204 East Curtis Street Phone (831) 449-3436
Salines, CA 93906 Fax (831) 449-3436

1es

Employment

Activities

1991 — Present Jeffries Landscaping Salinas, CA
Owner/Operator
= Landscape/inigation design and instaliation

1955 - 1991 (Retired) AT&T Salinas, CA
Senior Communications Technician

»  Monitored, operated and repaired complex felecommunications systems
and equipment

1987 — 1991 City of Salinas Salinas, CA
lileyor

= Reviewed and established management and operational policies for the
City of Salinas

1881 - 1987 City of Salinas Salinas, CA
Gounciliman

*  Reviewed and established management policies for the City of Salinas

1977- 1986 Stage Stop Sandwich Shop Salinas, CA
Alvin Square Liguors
Downtown Liquors

Cwnerffianager

Managed and operated three small businesses

California Regional Water Quality Control Board, 1993 - 2000, 2001 -
2014

Chairman, 1998 — 2000

Vice Chair, 2004 - 2013

Moss Landing Harbor Board, 1996 — Present
Vice President, 1998 ~ 2000

Secretary, 2001 - 2003

President, 2003 ~ Present

Monterey County Tax Appeals Board, 2003 - Present
Vice Chair, 2003 - 2004
Chairman, 2004 - Present

46



Special Districts Association of Monterey County, 2003 - Present
Secretary-Treasurer, 2003 — 2004

Vice Chair, 2004 — 2005

Chairman, 2005 — 2006

Salinas/Kushikino Sister City Association, 1987 — Present
Chairperson, 1994 — 1997 & 1999 — Present

California Rodeo Association, 1989 — Present
Committee Member & Honorary Director
Chairman of the Spacial Guests Committee

Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary, 2003 - 2013
Sanctuary Advisory Councilmember
Representing Cal EPA

Monterey County American Red Cross, 1996 - 2007
Vice President of the Board of Directors, 1999 — 2000
Chairman of the Board of Directors, 2001 - 2007

Monterey County Food Bank, 1992 — 1996
Chairman, 1996

Monterey County Water Resources Agency, 1892 —~ 1994
Boardmember

Salinas Valley Water Commission, 1981 — 1992
Commissioner

Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency, 1990 — 1991
Boardmember

Monterey County Mayor's Select Committee, 1987 — 1991
Chairperson, 1990 - 1991

Monterey/Salinas Transit District, 1987 — 1991
Chairperson, 1990 — 1891

California State Schoo! Board Association, 1975 — 1981
Delegate

Salinas Elementary School District, 1975 — 1081
Trustee

Brown Bag Program for Senior Citizens
Co-Founder

City of Salinas Police Reserves, 1056 - 1989
Member

United Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, 1967 — 1991
Chief Steward, 1975 - 1091

47



Awards received

Education

Special Districts Assaciation of Monterey County

Board Member of the Year, 2022

Salinas/Kushikino Sister City Association

Member of the Year, 1997 — 1998 & 2007 - 2008

Senate Rules Commiitiee
Distinctive Service Commendation, 1993

Presented by: Senators Henry Mello and David Roberti

Monterey County Board of Supervisors
Resolution of Appreciation, 1992

California Legislature Assembly
Distinctive Service Commendation, 1991
Presented by: The Honorable Sam Earr

California Rodeo Association
Special Appreciation Award, 1991

Salinas Chapter of the NAACP
Member of the Year 1990

Who's Who in the West, 1989 — Present

Salinas City School District
Resolution of Appreciation, 1981

1971 Hartnell College
Associate of Arts Degree

Salinas, CA

48



MAR 1 2024

[;AF@SH of Monterey County

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICT SELECTION COMMITTEE

NOMINATION FORM
TO DECLARE CANDIDACY AND REQUEST NAME AND STATEMENT ON BALLOTS
FOR ONE REGULAR POSITION ON
THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

Due Date: Maxch 1, 2024

Momninations will
Independent Spt
County.

-

(o e ¥t

Mormdnation Desdiine and Process:

may mbmm ﬂtw i+ ‘ mm?ﬂ. aam{mis e %‘ac}&}. YD‘L% E‘gﬂ}‘ nai
arke dafeg.ca gov OR mail it to P.O. Box 1369, Salinas, CA 93902 QRM
w 13«2 W, Gabilan Strect, Suite 107 in Salinas,

deliver it

Momination Staternent:

“1, Cﬂw M\{ V/ !MM@ A7 hereby deg]

Lom;mmﬂm&r of srhm LAFCO mLf:: M

e mayself a candid
y Coueny. 14

¢ for the election to the position of Regular
- an elected or appointed Monterey Councy
: bar or trustee residing within the co ot a member of a
7 or cmmmf"y img est my name be placed on the official ballot and, if elected, T will
nel acce :pt the office of Regular LAFCO Commissioner for which T am selected and serve to the best
Gf my abﬁ}m ‘

Mo

'
" o]
Name: $ -Aﬁ% wju: AW é: f’ﬂm‘«ém‘ ‘W - s a
Address: rwf (91 ( i\ ws fa v &i'“ L, 3"““5 W‘lwﬂr {. Z\ (EX ] If’% J aw e 9
Phone and email A=) 14 ~ A5G Chad @rasiedereppas

Your pos ] District Free Diste e i
Number of years ag a District Board Me

Candidate Statement for the Ballot

Please give reasons for wanting to be an elected LAFCO Commissioner and hriefly summarize qualifications
%ﬁ]’ backgroumnd: i C, l ik + F N ?A | PR o
Lo By O A3 TR Lenye Yes damenT 41 fhe, (n”* 185, Uh f lov_and  wa'ls 1n g Mnm,ii”’@mm,

s v?w:] »A.vj«}'mf{ fgé’“:i‘f‘ f}f* o Ko Mﬂ L J L8 r§ i%ff\ f”v H«m ;ﬁ“ ww 5 gine M’h m mé
c}ﬁqfi"”ﬁméw‘”“" f“’i\u e v, j { & gé.y“uﬂi.’jg\ i X " R F ‘ & o wer )
Lin gl dﬂ\ Adrpe Q wﬁf’ ,,e" 4Ang

theolasp 6 yeas
m——wwi{wvf w;,’ ;mmip "’Wa*”w AT Mre} ,,ﬁ*aflm f‘g@r&k%

49




Thank you for your interest in sexving on LAFCO of Monterey County.

Page 4 of 4

99/p8  3Vd ADENYH HDNIAGNY SSOW LEGPEETIED EEbE  91@zZ/bDOE



£i j it

&f"iﬁs’f’*f’i«f‘ Pl G m*’ﬁﬁ’ﬂ’*‘&i Cf»“fuzwgff*ﬂ &W mmjm’“{ fumfm The fﬂ"jn.::/f/{é?m;t?‘@r@%
#W %{‘me f‘;ww 4()‘%5‘65 ta -‘ﬁﬁr Comnty__while o F"ét«'ldf”iﬂj & ﬁ?fﬁezﬁ
/W’ fn&%f Ve W e ,( i &J ﬂ‘ﬁw"}‘é" iM\M’( "“”MM" “(m%wfjff‘ ’

y/; l,gf
Signed: W 4 A W;“’

Name (Print): C ‘{'?W?f /* ﬁl Ih ;M

y 'ﬁ
Date: Jd - (- o L/

Thank you for your interest in serving on LAFCO of Monterey County,

Page 4 of 4

51




AGENDA
ITEM

LAFCO of Monterey County NO. 8

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

KATE MEKENNA, AICE oty 1 ki S
Executive Officer Telephone (831) 754-5838 www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov
DATE: March 25, 2024

TO: Chair and Members of the Formation Commission

FROM: Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer

PREPARED BY: Jonathan Brinkmann, Senior Analyst

SUBJECT: Anticipated Future Agenda Items and Progress Report on Special Studies

CEQA: Not a Project under California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION:
Accept report for information only.
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT:

Following are current work priorities and a partial list of items that the Commission may consider in coming
months. It is organized by applications on file, potential applications under discussion, and I AFCO-initiated
studies.

Part I: Items Currently on File and In Progress

L. City of Greenfield — Annexation proposal with two separately owned parcels — an existing elementary
school site and a vacant parcel now owned by the City - on Apple Avenue west of the existing city limits.
The application status is incomplete.

This application has been on file since 2017, in part due to the need for a property tax transfer agreement
with the County. The intended use of the vacant parcel has changed from residential to a community
center. City and LAFCO staff are coordinating to update, complete and bring the application to a hearing
this year.

2. Fort Ord Reuse Authority Dissolution: The Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) ceased operations after
June 2020. LAFCO had statutory authority to oversee the FORA dissolution and holds administrative
and legal funds for that purpose. The County of Monterey is wrapping up FORA-related administrative
tasks and anticipates providing a status report to the Board of Supervisors by May 2024. By June 30,2024,
staff anticipates a LAFCO agenda item to consider a dissolution resolution that would also authorize a
return of FORA-related funds to former FORA jurisdictions.

3. Mission Soledad Rural Fire Protection District: Sphere amendment and annexation of Paraiso Springs
Resort (portion). Application status is incomplete.

The County approved the Paraiso Springs project in November 2019, and a portion of the site needs to be
annexed to the local fire district to comply with a County condition of approval. LAFCO received the
District’s application in 2022 and determined that the application is incomplete. The application is
largely inactive, although the District did re-engage in 2023 to address items in the completeness letter.

Page 48 of 82
52



Part 2: Potential Agenda Items under Discussion

1. City of Gonzales: Vista Lucia, Puente del Monte and D’Arrigo Projects. Status is pre-application.

(a) Vista Lucia and Puente del Monte projects: Annexation of some or all of an approximately 1,300-
acre area placed in the City’s sphere in 2014. In total, the two projects would approximately
double the existing City limits. The scope raises issues relevant to LAFCO’s review.

In February 2024, the City of Gonzales released a Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for
the Vista Lucia project (Fanoe-owned lands of approximately 768 acres) for public review and
comments. To meet the Draft FIR review schedule, staff submitted a comment letter on March
15, subject to the Commission’s review and authorization on March 25. The City anticipates
submitting an annexation application for the Vista Lucia project later in 2024.

The City is also working on a specific plan and an EIR for the Puente del Monte project (Jackson-
and Rianda-owned lands, approximately 547 acres). There is currently no anticipated timeline
for receiving an annexation application for this site.

(b) D'Arrigo Brothers farmworker housing: The property owners are proposing a 137-unit
farmworker housing project designed to accommodate up to 1,096 agricultural employees. One
possible site, on Fanoe Road north of Johnson Canyon Road, is adjacent to the city limits and
within the City’s designated sphere of influence. Provision of city water and sewer services to
this unincorporated site would require the Commission’s approval of either an annexation to
the City or an out-of-agency service extension. An alternative site is already in the City limits
and would not require any new LAFCO approvals. Staff participated in meetings with City and
County staff in 2023.

2. Monterey Peninsula Airport District: Detachment from the City of parcels owned by the Monterey
Peninsula Airport District. Status is pre-application.

Most Airport District-owned parcels are in the unincorporated County. Several outlying parcels along
Highway 68 are in the City of Monterey. The District is interested in detaching these parcels from the
City to eliminate a split in underlying city-county jurisdictions as the airport develops new facilities
according to its master plan. LAFCO staff are participating in coordination meetings with Airport, City,
and County representatives, most recently in January 2024.

3. Marina Coast Water District: Potential annexation of MCWD’s Armstrong Ranch property (north of
the Marina Municipal Airport) and sphere of influence amendment/annexation of portions of the Bureau
of Land Management (BLM) Fort Ord National Monument and Fort Ord Dunes State Park near existing
MCWD boundaries. Status is pre-application.

In 2010, MCWD acquired approximately 231 acres of Armstrong Ranch land, located north of the City of
Marina and south of the Monterey One Water facilities. The Armstrong Ranch property is within
MCWD’s existing sphere of influence. MCWD seeks to annex this property since it currently maintains
water-augmentation infrastructure for its Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project and Monterey
One Water’s Pure Water Monterey Project on this property. MCWD currently maintains existing water
infrastructure within the BLM Fort Ord National Monument, and water and wastewater infrastructure
within Fort Ord Dunes State Park. Staff met with MCWD representatives in February 2024 and is
working with them to refine the scope of the proposal area.

Page 49 of 82

53



4. City of Salinas: Target Area “K” (proposed Ferrasci Business Center project) sphere amendment and
annexation of approximately 140 acres at the northeast corner of Harrison Road and Russell Road. Status

is pre-application.

The site, just north of Salinas and designated as Target Area K in the City’s approved Economic
Development General Plan Element, is planned for business park, retail, and mixed-use (commercial and
residential) development. Informal pre-application discussions have been underway with County staff,
City staff and property owners since January 2020, most recently in May 2023. In June 2023, LAFCO staff
provided comments on the City’s Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report as a
CEQA Responsible Agency.

5. City of Marina: Annexation of California State University Monterey Bay (CSUMB) East Campus
housing areas (Schoonover and Frederick Park neighborhoods between Reservation Road and Imjin
Road), and detachment from Monterey County Regional Fire District. Status is pre-application.

Both CSUMB housing areas are in Marina’s sphere of influence and have a combined population of about
3,000. Among other considerations, LAFCO’s review will include the proposal’s potential effect on fire
and emergency medical service delivery models and related revenues to the affected agencies. Initial
discussions with the parties occurred in 2019 and recently restarted in February 2024. There is currently
no specific schedule for the City to subimit an application.

6. City of Soledad: Hacienda Apartments farmworker housing: Initial discussions regarding a potential
out-of-agency service extension to provide City wastewater and/or water services to an existing
apartment complex. Status is pre-application.

Hacienda Apartments is an existing 24-unit farmworker housing apartment complex located
approximately three miles northwest of Soledad in unincorporated Monterey County. The apartment
complex is currently served by a failing septic system and a water system that exceeds the maximum
contaminant level for nitrates. In 2023, the Soledad City Council received a presentation from consultants
regarding the Hacienda Apartments’ water system’s needs assessment, and the identified preferred
feasible option for a water system consolidation.

The City Council expressed concerns about the condition of the property and ensuring that the City was
made whole in terms of costs. The County of Monterey would need to complete a significant amount of
work for potential City extension of services to move forward. Since the apartments to be served are in
the County’s jurisdiction, the County will need to take the lead. As a result, the City has no plans to move
forward with an out-of-agency extension of services application to LAFCO until the County prepares the
necessary documents. LAFCO staff participated in an initial meeting of City, County, Central Coast
Water Board, and Rural Community Assistance Corporation (RCAC) staff in 2023.

Part 3: Other LAFCO-Initiated Studies

An MSR/SOI study for Soledad area special districts is now underway. The study will focus on the Soledad
Cemetery District’s challenges with transparency, accountability, and compliance with state legal
requirements; the Soledad-Mission Recreation District’s financial, operational, and governance challenges;
and strategies for the Soledad Community Health Care District’s to address financial challenges to maintain
and expand the delivery of vital services to a growing community.

Staff is also initiating an MSR/SOI study for the seven Monterey Peninsula cities, which began with a
coordination meeting with City of Marina in October 2023

Page 50 of 82
54



An MSR/SOI study for the City of Gonzales may be prepared in 2024 to coincide with that City’s anticipated
Vista Lucia annexation application (see page 2 of this report). The timing will depend upon when we receive
the application with information needed for the study.

Respectfully Submltted

Kate McKenna, AICP
Executive Officer

Page 51 of 82

55



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

March 18, 2024 \

Media Contact: Soledad Community

Adriana Gonzalez, Communications Coordinator HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

831-678-6033 adgonzalez@sched.com

Soledad Community Health Care District Leadership Applauds Historic
Advancement for Special Districts Nationwide

Soledad, Monterey County, Calif. — The recent approval of the Special District Grant
Accessibility Act by the House Oversight and Accountability Committee marks a watershed
moment for special districts nationwide. For leaders like Graig Stephens, President of the
Soledad Community Health Care District Board of Directors, and Ida Lopez Chan, CEO, this
legislative milestone represents a critical opportunity to amplify the voices of rural communities
and secure much-needed resources for underserved areas.

"That's why we have to have someone at the table," remarked Graig Stephens, President of the
Soledad Community Health Care District Board of Directors. His sentiment underscores the
necessity of representation in shaping policies that directly impact local communities. With over
35,000 special districts across the country, including 32 in Monterey County alone, having a seat
at the table ensures that the unique needs and challenges of rural areas are not overlooked.

Ida Lopez Chan, CEO of the Soledad Community Health Care District, expressed her delight at
the prospect of the Special District Grant Accessibility Act. "This promises to give special
districts a fighting chance at the federal level and will bring much-needed resources to
underserved rural communities," she stated. As a woman of color leading a rural healthcare
district, Chan's leadership embodies the resilience and determination of communities often
marginalized in national discussions.

Moreover, Ida Lopez Chan has been recognized for her exceptional leadership, expertise, and
commitment to advocating for special districts at a national level. She was one of the few chosen
to be part of the National Special Districts Coalition (NSDC) and engaged directly with this
project as one of California Special Districts Association (CSDA) appointees to the
“Healthcare/Hospital Districts’ Policy Advisory Group.”

The passage of this legislation, sponsored by Representatives Pat Fallon (R-TX) and Brittany
Pettersen (D-CO), signals a turning point in federal recognition and support for special districts.
By formalizing a definition of special districts and ensuring their eligibility for federal assistance,

56



PN

Soledad Community

HEALTH CARE DISTRIET

‘ f 612 Main Street, Soledad, CA 93960
(831) 678-2462 » Fax: (831) 678-1539

Ida Lopez Chan, CEO

March 18, 2024

Honorable Congresswoman Zoe Lofgren
1401 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Honorable Congresswoman Lofgren,

I'am writing to you on behalf of Soledad Community Health Care District, special district whose
mission is to anticipate and provide services to meet the health care needs of the people we serve
located in Soledad. As an advocate for the well-being and prosperity of our community, we are
reaching out to express our strong support for the Special District Grant Accessibility Act (H.R.
7525), recently approved by the House Oversight and Accountability Committee.

This groundbreaking legislation, sponsored by Representatives Pat Fallon and Brittany Pettersen,
represents a significant milestone for over 35,000 special districts nationwide, including 42
located right here in Monterey County. By establishing a formal definition of special districts in
federal law and ensuring their eligibility for federal assistance, including funding and resources,
this Act promises to empower local governments to better serve their constituents and address
critical needs.

As independent special districts in Monterey County, we understand the challenges and
opportunities unique to our communities. From healthcare and fire protection to water
management and beyond, our districts play a vital role in enhancing the quality of life for
residents across the county. With the passage of the Special District Grant Accessibility Act, we
are confident that our ability to fulfill our mission and serve our constituents will greatly be
strengthened.

57



Ida Lopez

From: Charlotte Holifield <charlotteh@csda.net> on behalf of Charlotte Holifield

Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 5:45 PM

To: Ida Lopez

Subject: (EXTERNAL] Invitation to Engage with 2023-24 NSDC Federal Policy Platform Revisions
Hi lda!

I'hope your event last week was a great success! So sorry | couldn’t make it. If you have any photos, we’d love to share
them on our social media.

I'm contacting you today because the National Special Districts Coalition (NSDC), of which CSDA is a founding member, is
in the process of updating its federal policy platform for 2023-2024. 1 am reaching out with an opportunity for you to

engage directly with this project as one of CSDA’s appointees to the “Healthcare/Hospital Districts’ Policy Advisory
Group.”

This email provides an outline of what this policy advisory panel will entail. Please read through the details below of this
limited engagement and let me know whether you are interested by Friday, October 7.

In an effort to ensure the 118t Congress Platform is representative of the various types of special districts within the
Coalition, the NSDC Legislative Committee has authorized two “district advisory groups” to provide expert insights on
federal policies impacting districts providing recreation and park services as well as public healthcare/hospital services.

Click here to review NSDC’s inaugural Federal Policy Platform for the 117 Congress.

This formal policy document guides NSDC’s advocacy on federal legislation and, at times, regulations impacting districts’
ability to provide services in their communities. Thus, special district representatives appointed to the advisory panels
will have an influence on the trajectory of NSDC’s advocacy in Washington, DC.

NSDC has asked its members to appoint two or three of their healthcare/hospital district members to be seated on
advisory panels to inform NSDC’s federal policy document. It is preferred that appointees be engaged in membership
programs, legislative advocacy, and possess knowledge of special districts policy issues. Your membership on this panel
would advance objectives of ensuring that matters involving healthcare/hospital districts are adequately reflected in the
Coalition’s advocacy priorities.

Advisory group members will be asked to complete a pre-meeting survey to preliminarily target priorities and issues for
discussion during at least one virtual meeting among peers in the month of October. Group discussions will be focused
on finding common policy threads and issues of concern across state lines. Any policy recommendations approved by
the advisory panel will be considered for the NSDC Legislative Committee’s final approval in December.

Healthcare/Hospital Advisory Group Meeting Times

Pre-Survey completion: Friday, October 14

Meeting 1: Wednesday, October 19 — 2 p.m.ET/11a.m. PT
**Meeting 2: Wednesday, November 2 —2 p.m.ET/11 a.m.PT
Finalized Advisory Group Recommendations: Thursday, November 17

Meetings will be scheduled for 90 minutes with the goal of adjourning each within 75 minutes.
**Second meeting will be as needed.

58



NSDC’s Legislative Committee will receive the final draft of the proposed 2023-2024 NSDC Federal Advocacy Platform on
Friday, November 18. The Committee will finally approve the policy document during its meeting on Thursday,
December 1, at 3 p.m. ET / Noon PT. Members of the advisory group will be welcome to join that meeting.

Click here for a live Dropbox link to a list of confirmed healthcare/hospital advisory group members.

Please let me know by Friday, October 7, whether you are interested in being part of this effort to ensure NSDC’s
advocacy is well-informed to advocate on matters impacting the nation’s special districts.

Thank you,
Charlotte

Charlotte Holifield, MPP

Coastal Network Public Affairs Field Coordinator
CSDA Water Policy Analyst

(805) 431-1249 (call / text)

chariotteh@csda.net

Join us for the 2022 CSDA Board Secretary/Clerk Conference
November 7 — 9, 2022 in Monterey

California Special Districts Association
1112 | Street, Suite 200

Sacramento, CA 95814
877.924.2732, 916.442.7889 fax
www.csda.net

A Proud California Special Districts Alliance Partner.
California Special Districts Association

Special District Risk Management Authority

CSDA Finance Corporation

59



ida Lopez

From:

Sent:
To:
Subject:

National Special Districts Coalition Portal <colek@nationalspecialdistricts.org> on
behalf of National Special Districts Coalition Portal

Thursday, March 14, 2024 1:31 PM

i.chan@sched.com

[EXTERNAL:] NSDC Weekly Updates - March 14, 2024

House and Senate Action

Both chambers are in session this week.

Special District Grant Accessibility Act
Approved in House Committee

In @ major milestone for the nation's special districts, last week, the House Oversight
and Accountability Committee approved the Special District Grant Accessibility Act.
The bill (H.R. 75625), which is sponsored by Representatives Pat Fallon (R-TX) and
Brittany Pettersen (D-CO), cleared the committee on an overwhelming 38-2 vote. To
view the committee's action on H.R. 7525, please click here. The discussion on the bill
begins at the 1:28:35 mark.

The Special District Grant Accessibility Act embodies NSDC's longstanding legislative
objective of codifying in federal law a first-ever, formal definition of special district. In
addition to establishing such a definition, H.R. 7525 would direct federal agencies to
recognize special districts as local governments for the purpose of ensuring that
districts are eligible to receive appropriate forms of federal assistance, including
funding and resources through key grant programs.

Looking ahead, the legislation is expected to be considered by the full House. As of
this writing, it remains unclear when House leadership will schedule the bill for a floor
vote. In the meantime, special districts are encouraged to reach out to their House
delegation members to urge them to cosponsor H.R. 7525.

Fiscal Year 2024 Appropriations Update

Ahead of a March 8 deadline, Congress approved and President Biden signed into law
a six-bill, $460 billion spending package that includes funding for the following fiscal

60



year 2024 appropriations measures: Agriculture; Commerce-Justice-Science; Energy-
Water; Interior-Environment; Military Construction-Veterans Affairs; and,
Transportation-HUD. The legislation adheres to the debt limit deal negotiated by
President Joe Biden and then-House Speaker Kevin McCarthy (R-CA). Overall, the
agencies and programs funded under the spending measure would generally remain
flat, though there are small increases for programs within the Energy-Water and
Transportation-HUD bills. The Interior-Environment measure would see the largest
percentage cut (over three percent), which is mainly due to reductions to the
Environmental Protection Agency’s budget.

While House GOP leaders claimed a number of key wins in the package, including
cuts to nondefense discretionary spending, conservatives were generally critical of the
final package. Some members were unhappy with the overall level of spending, while
others believed that Republicans should have been able to extract more policy
concessions. For their part, Democrats touted their efforts to reject the steep funding
cuts initially sought by the House Freedom Caucus. Congressional Democrats also
successfully turned away a number of controversial policy riders. In the end, House

Speaker Mike Johnson (R-LA) had to rely largely on Democratic support to advance
the bill.

Looking ahead, the deadline for passing the remaining six bills — Homeland Security,
Labor-Health and Human Services-Education, Defense, Financial Services, Legislative
Branch and State-Foreign Operations — is March 22. Several of these measures are

considered more controversial and thus will prove mare difficult to get over the finish
line.

President Biden Unveils FY 2025 Budget
Proposal

Earlier this week, President Biden unveiled his fiscal year 2025 budget request to
Congress, which covers broad spending categories and includes projections for major
entitlement programs, such as Social Security, Medicare and Medicaid. All told, the
administration is proposing $7.3 trillion in mandatory and discretionary spending for the
upcoming fiscal year, which begins on October 1, 2024. The proposed funding level
represents a 4.7 percent increase over the current budget. Among other things, the
Biden administration is calling on Congress to restore the popular expanded Child Tax
Credit that expired in 2021. The framework also includes funding for a federal-state
partnership aimed at expanding free pre-school education and revives legislative
proposals aimed at providing national paid leave and free community college.

The new spending would be offset by new taxes on the wealthy and major
corporations. Among other proposals, the budget would introduce a 25 percent
minimum tax on those earning more than $100 million. With regard to businesses, the
proposal calls for increasing the corporate tax rate to 28 percent (up from 21 percent).
It also proposes to increase the minimum tax on billion-dollar corporations to 21

61



percent (up from 15 percent). According to the administration, these reforms would
reduce the deficit by nearly $3 trillion over the next decade.

Looking ahead, a number of cabinet officials and other agency heads will appear
before various congressional committees in the coming weeks to defend the
administration’s spending priorities. However, given the divided Congress and highly-
charged political climate ahead of the November elections, the administration’s budget
plan will serve as more of a symbolic representation of the president’s policy priorities
than the actual starting place for upcoming spending decisions.

Senate Panel to Consider Bipartisan
Legislation to Reauthorize the Economic
Development Administration

This week, the Senate Environment and Public Works (EPW) Committee will consider
bipartisan legislation that would reauthorize the Economic Development Administration
(EDA,) for the first time in 20 years. The EDA is an agency within the Commerce
Department that invests in the economic development of distressed communities. The
bill proposes key reforms to modernize EDA’s core programs and authorizes activities
such as workforce development and disaster assistance. This bill would also authorize
and update the laws pertaining to certain federal regional commissions. A summary of
the bill is available here, and the full text can be accessed here.

Relevant Hearings and Markups

House Transportation — On Tuesday morning, the panel held a hearing entitled,
“‘Disaster Readiness: Examining the Propriety of the Expanded Use of FEMA
Resources.” FEMA Administrator Deanne Criswell is among those slated to testify.
More information on the hearing can be found here.

Senate Energy and Natural Resources — On Tuesday morning, the full committee
met to examine the findings and recommendations of the Wildland Fire Mitigation and
Management Commission. Additional detail on the hearing, including a full witness list,
can be accessed here.

Senate Finance — On Thursday morning, Health and Human Services (HHS)
Secretary Xavier Becerra appeared before the committee to discuss the president’s
fiscal year 2025 budget request for the department. More information on the hearing
can be found here.

Senate Homeland Security — On Thursday morning, the full committee met for a
hearing, entitled “A Nation on Fire: Responding to the Increasing Wildfire Threat.”
Additional hearing details, including a full witness list, can be accessed here.

Senate Budget — On Tuesday morning, the panel heard from Office of Management
and Budget Director Shalanda Young on the president's fiscal year 2025 budget

62



proposal. A live webcast of the meeting will be available here, beginning at 10:15am
ET.

Sign up for NSDC Member Communications

Use this form to subscribe to NSDC Member Communications.

Read more

63



69 65 65 65 6§ 6§ 6§ 69 65 65 [4" 01 379VIIVAY SA39 40 ¥3dNNN
65 69 65 65 69 69 65 65 6S 65 ) 69 SQ@3d ALIMDV4 40 439NN
%0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %16 %V6 JOVLINIOYId ADNVdINIJO0
76E'T SPST SAVA VN1V V101
678'T OLLT 6T8'T OLLT 6T8T 678T OLLT 678T OLLT €v9'T LEST €v9'T SAVA 314ISSOd 1V10L
1€ 0€ 1€ o€ 133 153 o€ 1€ o€ 1€ 6¢ T€ HLNOIW Ni SAVA
AONVdNI20
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 LY 514 V101
301dSOH
8¢ 1€ Ivo-1a3N
T T J1VAIYd
8T LT FUVOId3IN
SASNID
A1va IDVHIAY
J3d AON 100 1d3S O5Snv nf NAr AVIN d4dV  YVIN 834 NVI

AdTIVA NAAd 04 SOSNAD A THLNOW $20C

64



8 8 11 1% 4 8 S 1% 14 T 1 [4) 319V1IVAY SA39 40 Y39NNN
65 65 65 69 69 6S 65 6S 6S €9 €S €9 $a3d ALIDV4 40 439NN
%98 %98 %E8 %C6 %L6 %98 %C6 %6 %E6 %L6 %86 L. JOV.INIIYId ADNVANII0
I8S‘T O0ES'T TIST 8T9'T £9L'T 998T 679T <CTL'T L¥9'T  £8ST TSV'T ¥9CT SAVA TVNLIV VL0l
678°T O0LLT 678'T OLLT 678T 6¢8T O0LLT 6T8'T OLLT Ev9T v8Y'T €¥9'1 SAVA 314ISSOd V101
1€ 0€ 1€ o€ 1€ 1€ o€ 133 0t 1€ 8¢ 133 HINOIA NI SAVA
AINVdNIO0

1S 1S 8P 59 LS 1§ S 55 S5 [4:] [4 v V10l
321dSOH

[43 [43 [43 133 143 o€ 6¢ 6¢ 9¢ ve €¢ ve IVI-1d3IN
T T 1 [4 € € v v € S 1% € J1VAlYd
81 8T ST [44 T4 8T T¢ [44 9¢ €¢ S¢ Vi FUVIIA3IN

SASNID
A1IVa IDOVHIAVY
23 AON 100 1d3S 5Snv nf NAT  AVIN 8dV  dVIN 934 NVI

AATIVA NHAH ¥O4 SANSNAD A THINOW £¢0C

65



66

= # * 5 5 # 7 # = # = # = # o = = = = =896 2L6C | €6 LVE'E S1ISIN TV101
S3INIDDVA

ainod
0 0 T 0€ 3ND3AVS ¥a
0 T T TC 3ISYNN LSN
€ €6 14 Tt LHOIMM "Ha
€ L6 € 70T VAJLS3 "Hd
1% €0t 1% €eT dSddD
T [474 [4 09| AHdVY4OOWNINVIA
€ 6L € 0T ANNOS v¥LIN
T 144 T 0¢ dANTTIA "Hd
z 9 T 6T|  (QIN) NIVSSOH
0 0 T (0)/ YITANVYHD "¥d

0 0 JHM
9 08T 0T SZE| dNTTIHIS VIYVIN
0T LLT 6 8LC AdOLVd0av1
T €C T 6C LINDNIA 34VD
1% 11T 9 00¢ SLISIAVIN
1% T4 € 90T AVY-X
9 q8T L 8T¢C VOgGINVD Hd
€T TLE 1T ove J-Vd SIAVA
VOOVYavZI
YISO
0T (00} TE LEE VN3d ‘"d
S SvT 14 €EeT aod Hd
0T 96¢ 6 89¢ NVvd1139 ""d
91 14514 ST 9% NOYID "Hd

Aeg |23a| Aeg |AON Aeqg| 120 Aeq|ld3s Aeg(onv Aeqal 1nr Aeg|NNf Aeq| AVIN Aeqg| ddv Aeq|dVIN| Aeq d34| Aeq NVT 44Y1S JINS
13d 'id 13d "3 1ad "id Jad 'id 1ad 'id 1ad "d Jad "id 13d 'id 13d 'id 13d "3 Jad1d 1ad1d
Say Say Say Say Say Say Sny Sny Say Sy Say Say

SINNOD 1ISIA LN3I1Vd ¥7¢0¢




€9 | 009t | 0cc | 2s6‘c | S€€ I2Lc | 2bS | 8I8T | 0€S | STEE€ | S6E |2ZvLe | ObE | 2LOE |v9Z | 20S‘€ | 09¢ | 086 | 99Z | v6Z'E S1ISIN TV.LOL
‘ 0 0 6 6 4 (e €1 6 143 0 0 SANIDIVA
ainod
8T 88 Sz 6 LT L8 anbespegsiq
z ot € 9z z QT S 8T 14 6¢ S 6¢ S 33 [4 (014 14 v1 z LT 3SINN LSN
8T SS 6T L6 €T 16 6¢ 86 (@ 6¢CT 44 68 1C 1C E 8€T 9z 15 9 SS W3UM "Ia
174 4% T 44 q9 LC oy €T 4 (44 1937 14 89 At 10T 014 18] - = VA3LS3 ¥a
0 0 1 187 0z 6S € 1% S 61 8T 8T 9 LY NIANON ¥d
91 91 8T 8T LT 89 ¢ 147 (014 8L 81 €9 8¢ 6T v6 8 69 sauseq ud
61 6T 0 0 0 v v 014 6€ 61 LE 0 81 8T Vi 6S| 143INVY 30 ¥d
8 6€T 8 10T s Q1T €1 TTT 8 6 6 [43} o) 9€T T 6ST (o) STT Vi 8TT dSdd
0 0 0 0 z L 14 (42 1 9/ ¥ S6 € 09 € 0] Q¥ TIaANS vINr
4 [4°] T 8S 0t 4] v vT 4" 6V 8 0s €1 0S L 142 v 147 9 LS|AHdVYDOWNNYIN
6 90T 8 9z iz ¥0T GT 88 8 06 8 90T 7 vL L 88 6 06 L ¥0T| ANNOS VYLIN
0 S 9T 0 0 9 85|  vY3ITINOV "¥d
61 L6 61 qS 9T 1€ o€ 6S 12 1C 61 9/ YINTUN ¥a
G'8T LE 81 81 LT 143 144 0S 0z ov 144 144 0 S 6T 1C [47 € 44 (Q) ueissoH
S'8T LE 1C 1C (A" 144 574 1¢ 9T 91 14 ¢ € GET 0T 65 0 0 9 €S| Y3ITANVHD ¥a
81 GGe 0¢ 85¢ 61 96¢ Ge 1433 o€ 4% LT vLE v L8T 11 324 81 9743 91 6€€ dN‘113HDS
YIMYIA
OHM
0 0 6 [4)8 qog easjouel
a4 91¢ 88T 74 44 8¢ 8¢ €€ LT 6T Y44 91 68T 8T GLT 61 90¢ 61 vST J-vd
‘aooMyaann
ANV
vT 80¢€ v €9¢ v T0€ o€ €8¢ 8¢ L6T LT 68¢ GT Eve 4 ¥S¢ Gl T1¢ 4 60¢ AdOLVHOaV]
z 6T z 8¢ 14 8¢ 1% 9¢ 14 147 ¢ 1€ z 143 C Ge G L€ [4 LE| LWDNIN YYD
9 6CT 9 66 8 G991 L 59 9 89 9 ¥0T 1% €L S TTT S L8 9 (o149 SLISIA VN
L €T 8 €€l 9 144" vT 6¢T v 6ST 01 €61 6 8ST 6 9v1 6 142" 8 8T AVY-X
LT 34 LT G8T 91 8L € 13 9z 9ST qT 91¢ o) 144" 91 L8T LT q8T 61 68T VO4INVYD "Ha
144 9s€ v 0€€ 44 [4o}3 147 68¢ LE 9g€ 0z LSE 0t VLT 014 86¢ (014 €9¢ 0¢ [4%3 J-Vd SIAVd
VDOVYYZI1
4VISO
1c 6v¢C (014 ¥9¢ s 9TV 6€ 80¢€ 9¢ Ci%3 61 (43 8T S0€ 81 LEE 61 €TC 8T 1144 VYN3id "¥d
6¢ EVT 6¢ €8 €€ L6T 18 701 qS 991 1€ vST o€ 1145 9z ¥0T T€ 6| o€ 6LT aoy '¥a
61 L0€ 0z 95T 8T 06¢ 143 vee 43 €Vt 61 [4°74 61 €61 (014 16T 8T 8LT ¢ LTe NVY1739 ¥d
e (47 14 9ey 1C v8Y 8¢ 144 LE Evy 8T 06¢€ LT 0€€ 81 9TY 61 ¥9€ 61 61¢€ NOYID "¥a
Aeq 120 Aeg| 1d3S Aeg onv| Aeg nr|  Aea| 3NNf|  Aeag| AVIN| Aeq 4dV| Aeg| WUVIN| Aeq 34| Aeg NV d44VLISJINS
13d "id J3d ‘id Jad M 134 'id Jad i 13d d 1ad "3 Jad " Jad'd 13d'}d
3y Sny 3ny Sy 3ny Sny 3ny Sny 3ny 3ny

SINNOD LISIA LN3ILVd €20¢




27, g /W o/l g Lot
Meeple af He faaf&“&% . Yo Fruekl
S e %V\,juf M@cj%rj -é‘c%aé‘géff

' Lo

68




-

s

292

Thank you so much for taking part in our first
FHealth & Wellness Fair at the Soledad Family
Resource Center. Your attendance fas made a
difference in the lives of our community members
and to the success of the event.

LooKing forward to future collaborations!






